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Dur i ng  the  19 9 9 - 2 0 0 0  f i scal  year  ( f y0 0 ) , stanf ord  o nce  aga i n  b e ne f i te d  f rom  an

outstanding investment env i ronment and from generous support from its alumni and fri e n d s . These fa c t o rs enhanced

S t a n f o rd ’s position as one of the wo r l d ’s premier unive rs i t i e s , as did its location in Silicon Va l l ey, one of the most

dynamic areas for innovations in high technolog y. The Unive rs i t y ’s strong net asset base enables it to face challenges caused by

i n c reases in the high cost of living in the Bay A rea and to undert a ke the mission of strengthening undergraduate education out-

lined by President Hennessy on page 2.

The Unive rsity made great strides in a number of areas that are at the core of its academic and re s e a rch missions.

Highlights of the year included:

•  One of the most successful development programs among universities nationwide. Total cash gi f t s , as re p o rted by the

O f fice of Deve l o p m e n t , reached a re c o rd-high $580 m i l l i o n , up from $ 32 0 million in fy99. A d d i t i o n a l l y, pledges re c e ived 

d u ri n g fy00 reached re c o rd leve l s , including a $150 million pledge from former Stanford electrical engi n e e ring professor 

and entre p reneur Jim Clark to establish the James H. Clark Center for Biomedical Engi n e e ring and Sciences.

•  U n p recedented investment re t u rns of   .  billion on Stanford ’s endowment assets. The favo r a ble investment env i ro n-

m e n t , especially during fall 1999, and Stanford Management Company ’s successful investment progr a m , including investment 

in ve n t u re capital part n e rs h i p s , generated endowment re t u rns of approximately 40%. These re t u rns provided increased support 

for operations and investment for the future.

•  C o n t i nued strength in undergraduate applications. S t a n f o rd continues to be one of the most competitive institutions 

for the admission of undergraduate students. S t a n f o rd offered admission to 2,425 students from among 18,363 applicants for 

a class of 1,600.

•  Initiation of a five - ye a r, 1 billion Campaign for Undergraduate Education. Announced by President Hennessy in his

inaugural speech, this campaign is the largest ever devoted exclusively to undergraduate education at any unive rsity and will

a l l ow Stanford to continue implementing innovations in undergraduate education. The campaign is described further by Board

of Trustees Chair Isaac Stein on page 12.

•  Realization of the     million endowment goal for the Stanford Graduate Fe l l owships (sgf) . The sgf p rogram allow s

S t a n f o rd to attract the best graduate students and provide them the freedom to pursue graduate education independent of

financial limitations. The program is now fully enrolled with more than 350 graduate students in 36 fie l d s ,r a n ging from applied 

p hysics to statistics.

Discussion of Financial Results
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•  Completion of major capital pro j e c t s. Completed projects include the new Center for Clinical Sciences and Researc h ,

the first phase of new graduate student housing, and major re n ovations to the Science and Engi n e e ring Quad McCullough

Annex Building and other campus fa c i l i t i e s .

•  A p p roval of a new Community Plan and General Use Pe rm i t . In December 2000, after a compre h e n s ive two - year effort ,

the Santa Clara County Board of Superv i s o rs approved a 10- year plan that will allow Stanford to build 4.8 million square feet

of academic and residential deve l o p m e n t , while pre s e rving 2,000 a c res of the foothills as open space for 25 ye a rs .

S t a n f o rd , similar to other unive rsities with academic medical centers , has faced challenges in recent ye a rs posed by a volatile health 

c a re marketplace and by declining gove rnment re i m bu rsement rates. S t a n f o rd Unive rsity and the Regents of the Unive rsity of

C a l i f o rnia tried to confront these challenges through the 1997 merger of Stanford ’s patient care services with those of the

U n ive rsity of California-San Francisco, which resulted in ucsf S t a n f o rd Health Care. Due to the many challenges described in

the inset on page 18 , S t a n f o rd and uc a greed to terminate the merger effective March 31, 2 000. With the termination of ucsf

S t a n f o rd Health Care, S t a n f o rd Hospital and Clinics (shc) , which includes Lucile Salter Pa c k a rd Childre n ’s Hospital at Stanford

(lspch) , resumed stand-alone operations effective A p ril 1, 2000. S t a n f o rd ’s share of ucsf S t a n f o rd Health Care ’s results for 

the seven months ended Marc h 31, 2000, and the results of shc for the remaining five months of fyoo a re included in the 

U n ive rs i t y ’s consolidated financial statements.

Fo l l owing is a rev i ew of the fy00 financial activities of the Unive rs i t y, excluding the results of the Unive rs i t y ’s inve s t m e n t

in ucsf S t a n f o rd Health Care and the results of shc, which are discussed separately on page 18.

S T A T E M E N T  O F  A C T I V I T I E S   The Statement of A c t iv i t i e s , which details operating reve nues and expenses and other 

non-operating changes during the ye a r, re p o rts an increase in the Unive rs i t y ’s net assets of $3.3 billion in fy00 c o m p a red 

to $1.7 billion in the 1998-1999 fiscal year (fy99) . The increase in net assets is directly attri bu t a ble to unparalleled investment 

p e r f o rm a n c e, along with re c o rd - l evel gifts and pledges. Total investment re t u rns of $2.8 billion we re re c ognized in fyoo,

re p resenting an increase of 61.9% over fy99. See the “ R e p o rt from the Stanford Management Company ” on page 21 for 

f u rther details of investment perform a n c e. A d d i t i o n a l l y, gifts and pledges re c o rded in the financial statements we re up to 

$848 million in fy00 f rom $287 million in fy99.

UNRE STR IC TED  NE T A S S E T S

Results of Opera t i o n s Operating activities include all reve nues and expenses that are used to support curre n t - year teaching 

and re s e a rch efforts and other Unive rsity pri o ri t i e s . C o m p a red to fy99, total Unive rsity reve nues increased 11.9% to nearly 

$2.0 billion and total expenses increased 8.2% to $1.7 b i l l i o n . Operations resulted in an excess of reve nues over expenses of 

$227 million in fy00, c o m p a red to $149 million in fy99, largely due to increased investment re t u rn s . A significant portion 

of the surplus is budgeted to paying debt pri n c i p a l , funding facilities construction and systems-related pro j e c t s , and providing 
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s u p p o rt for faculty and staff housing progr a m s . A d d i t i o n a l l y, schools and departments invested approximately 25% of the excess

into the endowment to support future programmatic initiative s , including the Stanford Graduate Fe l l owship progr a m . T h e

remainder is designated or committed through donor pre f e rence for specific school or departmental purposes and for support 

of specific Unive rsity initiative s .

Highlights of the Unive r s i t y ’s operating activit ies are summari zed below:

•  Student income increased  . % to $ 2 8 0 million in F Y0 0. C o n t ri buting to this increase we re the undergraduate tuition 

rate increase of 4.3% and the room and board rate increase of 1.4%. Student enrollment also increased slightly. O f f s e t t i n g

tuition and room and board reve nues is need-based and merit-based aid for undergraduate and graduate students, w h i c h

i n c reased during fy00 by 8.1% to a total of $89 m i l l i o n .

•  In total, s p o n s o red re s e a rch support increased by $ 41 m i l l i o n , or 6 . 4 % , to $674 million in F Yo o. The Unive rs i t y ’s 

d i rect cost re i m bu rsement was up $21.6 million due pri m a rily to increased levels of re s e a rch activity in the School of 

M e d i c i n e. I n d i rect cost reve nues we re up 9.5% due to increased re s e a rch volume and a 1% increase in the facilities and 

a d m i n i s t r a t ive cost rate.

•  E n d owment income and gains distri buted for operations cove re d 18 . 2 % of total operating expenses for F Y0 0, up 

f rom 16 . 4 % for F Y9 9. To protect the value of the endow m e n t ,S t a n f o rd has a policy gove rning distri bu t i o n , which is estab-

lished by the Board of Trustees through an annual target payout rate. For fy00 and fy99, the target payout rate re flects a 

base of 4.75% plus 0.5% to support the re n ewal of campus buildings and infrastru c t u re. D u ring fy00, the payout to operations

f rom the endowment wa s $315 m i l l i o n ,c o m p a red to $262 million in fy99. This increase was pri m a rily the result of growth 

in the endowment base due to exceptional market performance and strong donor support over the past several ye a rs .

•  Excellent re t u rns we re also re c ognized on other inve s t m e n t s, including the expendable funds pool (E F P) . Total re t u rn

on investments in the efp was 22.5% in fy00, or $247 m i l l i o n . In accordance with the Unive rs i t y ’s efp p o l i c y, $91 million of

the efp re t u rn was made ava i l a ble to operations in fy00, $21 million more than in fy99. The remaining $156 million wa s

i nvested in the endow m e n t . A d d i t i o n a l l y, p e r f o rmance of other specific investments paralleled the overall market perform a n c e,

c o n t ri buting to the increase in other investment income.

•  As with most port f o l i o s, the Unive r s i t y ’s investment portfolio has sustained losses in its market value since August 31 ,

2 0 o o. Due to the dive rs i fied nature of the portfolio and a conserva t ive strategy in determining the annual amount paid out to

s u p p o rt operations, the Unive rsity does not anticipate any significant bu d g e t a ry impact from the current equity market decline.

•  Special program fees and other income increased $ 33 m i l l i o n , or 2 0 . 6 % , to $191 million in F Y0 0. The category includes

the reve nues of auxiliary enterp ri s e s ,s e rvice centers , special programs including technology licensing, and other program initia-

t ives such as the Exe c u t ive Education progr a m s . The increase in special program fees and other income is attri bu t a ble pri m a ri l y

to favo r a ble results in technology licensing.
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Related Health Care Ent i t ie s

The operating activities of UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care we re terminated effective March 31, 2000, and on April 1, 2000, Stanfo rd Hospital

and Clinics (SHC) assumed control of Stanfo rd Unive rsity Hospital, Lucile Salter Pa c ka rd Childre n ’s Hospital (LSPCH), and the primary 

c a re, specialty and subspecialty clinics and professional practices associated with the Unive rs i t y ’s School of Medicine fa c u l t y.  Ac c o rd i n g l y, the

financial results of SHC for the last five months of FY00 and its financial position are consolidated in the Unive rs i t y ’s financial statements under

the “Hospitals” column.  The Unive rs i t y ’s investment in UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care and its share of the joint ve n t u re ’s results for the seven months

ended March 31, 2000 are re c o rded on the equity method and are also included in the “Hospitals” column. 

U C S F  S T A N F O R D  H E A L T H  C A R E D u r i ng UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care’s last seven mo nt hs of health care activitie s, the joint vent u re

re c o rded losses of $127 million, bring i ng the total opera t i ng losses du r i ng the 29 mo nt hs of the me rger to approx i mately $176 million.  The opera t i ng

l o s s e s, split about evenly between SHC and UC, were a result of fina nc ial challenges faced by all acade m ic me d ical cent e r s, as well as struc t u ral, 

o p e ra t io nal, and cultural differe nces between the two ins t i t u t io ns.  The University’s share of the opera t i ng losses for the seven mo nt hs ended 

Ma rch 31, 2000, was approx i mately $64 million, offset by $12 million in other changes in net assets, inc l ud i ng gifts and unrealized investme nt

re t u r ns.  The total de c rease in the University’s investme nt in UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care was $52 million for FY00.

On April 1, 2000, UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care tra ns f e r red $380 million of net assets back to SHC.  After re c o rd i ng wind i ng - down ex p e nses and

i n v e s t me nt inc o me du r i ng the last five mo nt hs of the fiscal year, the University’s investme nt in the joint vent u re was $20 million at August 31, 2000.

Upon final dissolution, which is expected to occur prior to August 31, 2001, the re ma i n i ng net assets of the joint vent u re will be re t u r ned to SHC.

S T A N F O R D  H O S P I T A L  A N D  C L I N I C S  F o l l o w i ng the termina t ion of UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care’s opera t i ng activitie s, SHC re c o rded 

a $48 million opera t i ng loss for the five mo nt hs ended August 31, 2000.  The stand - a l o ne fina nc ial perfo r ma nce of the two ho s p i t a l s, SHC and LSPCH,

was impacted by sig n i fic a nt unu s ual, one - t i me ex p e nses associated with the 53-day nu r s i ng strike that occurred in June and July, as well as the cost

of re s t o r i ng the post-me rger infra s t r uc t u re and opera t io ns.  

L i ke acade m ic me d ical centers aro u nd the na t ion, the University’s hospitals have been negatively impacted by re duc t io ns in fede ral re i m b u r s e-

me nt.  Compound i ng the fede ral re v e nue effect is the low rate of comme rc ial ma na ged care re i m b u r s e me nt in the Bay Area, which is one of the mo s t

u nde r f u nded health care ma r kets in the count r y.  Upward pre s s u re on labor costs has also contributed to the hospitals’ fina nc ial perfo r ma nc e.  Despite

t hese negative fa c t o r s, hospital occupancy at LSPCH has cont i nued to be stro ng and SHC occupanc y, which de c l i ned in the last year of the me rge r, has

begun an upward tre nd in re c e nt mo nt hs.  

Ma na ge me nt has developed and is impleme nt i ng a two-year plan to return clinical opera t io ns to break-even.  The plan, which begins with fis c a l

year 2001, emphasizes appro p r iate cost re duc t io ns, growth in profitable pro g ra ms, and re v e nue enhanc e me nt through improved cont ract adm i n i s t ra-

t ion.  Despite adverse fina nc ial re s u l t s, the hospitals have cont i nued to pro v ide exc e l l e nt health care, train the next ge ne ra t ion of leading do c t o r s,

pursue innovative re s e a rch, and offer invaluable support to the commu n i t y. 
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•  Total expenses increased $ 131 m i l l i o n , or 8 . 2 %, to $ 1 . 7 billion in F Y0 0. This increase is, in large part , the result of 

additional sponsored re s e a rch activ i t y, p a rticularly in the School of Medicine. In addition, d e p reciation increased $ 5 9 million 

to $ 171 million in f y 00, p ri m a rily as a result of the adoption of a revised set of useful live s , which are generally shorter than

those previously employe d .

Other Changes in Unrestr icted Net Assets In total, u n re s t ricted net assets of the Unive rsity increased by $2.5 b i l l i o n ,i n c l u d i n g

the excess of reve nues over expenses of $ 2 2 7 million resulting from operations. The majority of other changes in unre s t ricted net

assets are re i nvested endowment gains of $2.0 billion and other investment income invested in the endowment of $156 m i l l i o n ,

which re p resent excess efp re t u rn s . Under current accounting ru l e s , the majority of the income and gains on the endowment are

re p o rted as unre s t ri c t e d , even though the Unive rsity manages these re s o u rces in accordance with donors ’ re s t ri c t i o n s , legal re q u i re-

m e n t s , and contractual obl i g a t i o n s .

The Unive rs i t y ’s endowment investment strategy and results are summarized in the re p o rt of the Stanford Management

C o m p a ny on page 21. S t a n f o rd ’s investment strategy utilizes div i d e n d s ,i n t e re s t , rental income, and previously re i nvested gains on

the endowment to fund the payout to operations. In ye a rs of average or better market perform a n c e, the Unive rs i t y ’s market gains

exceed the amount of the pre d e t e rmined payo u t , and the excess is re i nvested in the endow m e n t . In fy00 and in fy99, t h e

e n d ow m e n t ’s total re t u rn more than cove red the income and gains distri buted to operations.

The Unive rs i t y ’s share of ucsf S t a n f o rd Health Care results are included in the “ H o s p i t a l s ” column for fy00. See inset 

on page 18 for further details.

T E M P O R A R I LY  RE STR IC TED  NE T A S S E T S

Te m p o r a rily re s t ricted net assets increased by $189 m i l l i o n , or 65.4%, to $478 million in fy00. The Unive rsity re c e ived $327 m i l-

lion of new gifts and pledges, a $ 2 41 million increase from fy99. Offsetting this increase was the release from re s t rictions of 

$140 million to unre s t ricted net assets to cover capital expenditures and other activ i t i e s . A p p roximately $27 million of temporari l y

re s t ricted net assets we re transferred to permanently re s t ricted net assets upon specific donor designation to endow m e n t .

P E R M A N E N T LY RE STRICT ED NE T AS SE TS   

Pe rmanently re s t ricted net assets increased by $622 m i l l i o n , or 32.2%, to $2.6 billion during fy00. The increase was due pri m a ri l y

to the receipt of $391 million in new gifts and pledges for the endow m e n t , re i nvestment of endowment re t u rns of $185 m i l l i o n ,

and the transfer of $27 million of temporarily re s t ricted net assets to endowment upon specific donor designation.

F I N A N C I A L  P O S I T I O N The Unive rs i t y ’s Statement of Financial Position re flects strong investment re t u rn s , re i nvestment 

of a significant portion of earnings in the endow m e n t ,s t rong donor support , and continued efforts towa rd the re n ewal of 

the Unive rs i t y ’s physical infrastru c t u re. In fy00, total Unive rsity assets increased to $14 b i l l i o n , while total Unive rsity liabilities

i n c reased to $2.3 b i l l i o n .

Total inve s t m e n t s ,p ri m a rily consisting of endowment assets and the efp, i n c reased by $2.7 b i l l i o n , or 35.1%,

to $10.5 b i l l i o n .
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Plant fa c i l i t i e s , net of accumulated depre c i a t i o n , grew 10.2% to $1.9 b i l l i o n . This increase re flects the significant constru c-

tion activity associated with the Unive rs i t y ’s re n ewal of its physical infrastru c t u re.

Notes and bonds paya ble we re $ 1. 1 billion at August 31, 2 000, an increase of 1. 7 % f rom f y 99. The increase is largely due 

to increases in commercial paper borrow i n g . The Unive rsity is borrowing to fund the faculty and staff mortgage progr a m s ,

demands for which are increasing in response to the high cost of housing in the Bay A re a . The Unive rs i t y ’s capital plan and capital

s t ru c t u re are gove rned by an internal debt policy approved by the Board of Tru s t e e s , which monitors the amount and type of

debt Stanford may incur. It is intended to pre s e rve the Unive rs i t y ’s long-term liquidity and financial fle x i b i l i t y, as well as its access

to capital markets at competitive rates.

Net assets of the endowment increased $2.7 b i l l i o n , or 42.7%, to $8.9 b i l l i o n . The $2.7 billion increase included new 

gifts of $242 m i l l i o n ;t r a n s f e rs to endowment of $236 m i l l i o n , including the transfer of $156 million of excess efp re t u rn s ;

and re i nvested endowment re t u rns of $2.2 b i l l i o n .

C O N C L U S I O N By any measure, the Unive rs i t y ’s financial position was greatly enhanced during fy00. In turn , this stro n g

financial position supports the Unive rs i t y ’s capacity for innovation and its ability to perform leading-edge re s e a rch and offer 

high-quality educational programs in an unmatched physical env i ro n m e n t . We will continue to build on the Unive rs i t y ’s solid

financial foundation to meet current needs, while protecting and increasing the Unive rs i t y ’s re s o u rces and ensuring that they 

a re ava i l a ble to future generations of students.

We appreciate all the efforts of the fa c u l t y, s t a f f, s t u d e n t s , t ru s t e e s ,a l u m n i , and other friends who have built the 

U n ive rs i t y ’s strong foundation. We look forwa rd to working together to continue to fulfill Stanford ’s mission.

M . Suzanne Calandra
C O N T RO L L E R

M a riann Bye r wa l t e r
V IC E  PR E S I D EN T  F OR  BU S I N ES S A F FAI R S  

AN D  CH IE F F IN A NC I AL  O F F IC E R
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T he stanf ord manag e m ent com pany (smc)  was establ i sh ed in 1991  to  manage stanf ord ’s

financial and real estate investment assets. smc is a division of the Unive rs i t y with ove rsight by a Board of Dire c t o rs

appointed by the Unive rsity Board of Tru s t e e s . The smc b o a rd consists of at least three tru s t e e s ,s everal investment and

real estate pro f e s s i o n a l s , and Unive rsity re p re s e n t a t ive s . The Company directs approximately $11.0 billion of endowment and tru s t

a s s e t s , working capital, t e m p o r a rily invested expendable funds, and commercial real estate investments including the Stanford

R e s e a rch Pa r k . These assets are managed by external equity investment managers ,i n t e rnal fixed income and cash managers ,a n d

i n t e rnal and external real estate managers .

E N D O W M E N T  A S S E T  A L L O C A T I O N smc ove rsees the Unive rs i t y ’s $8.9 billion endow m e n t . G iven the perpetual nature

of the Unive rs i t y, the strategic investment horizon is ve ry long-term . smc’s objective is to develop and execute an inve s t m e n t

strategy that generates optimal total re t u rn (income plus price appreciation) re l a t ive to the risk take n . The result is that most of

S t a n f o rd ’s endowment ($8.6 billion re f e rred to as the Merged Endowment Pool) is invested in multiple asset classes.

The asset classes of the Merged Endowment Pool and their target allocations at August 31, 2000 f o l l ow :

A l t e rn a t ive Investments include ve n t u re capital, bu yo u t s , natural re s o u rc e s , and absolute re t u rn strategi e s ; Real Estate Equity

includes the Stanford Shopping Center, as well as other dive rs i fied real estate inve s t m e n t s .

E N D O W M E N T  P E R F O R M A N C E The u. s. e c o n o my continued to grow rapidly through the first half of the 1999 – 2 000 fis c a l

ye a r; h oweve r, signs of decelerating growth began to appear by mid-ye a r. G rowth stocks, p a rticularly technology issues, c o n t i nu e d

their market leaders h i p, though this market sector showed extreme vo l a t i l i t y. I n fla t i o n - s e n s i t ive inve s t m e n t s , such as commodities 

and real estate, a d vanced as we l l . This env i ronment supported significant appreciation in the endow m e n t , which had a total re t u rn 

for the year of 39 . 8 % .

E n d owment performance is assessed by comparing the total re t u rn for the endowment investment portfolio first to 

i n flation to measure real re t u rn and then to comparable benchmarks to measure the effectiveness of smc’s management.

E N D O W M E N T  P E R F O R M A N C E  C O M P A R E D  T O  I N F L A T I O N V i ewing the performance of Stanford ’s multi-asset 

strategy in a long-term context, the table below illustrates annual re t u rns for va rious periods ending August 31, 2000. S t a n f o rd ’s

real re t u rn objective is 6.25% net of management fees. If this real re t u rn target is achieved over time, the real value of the 

Report from the Stanford Management Company

D o me s t ic Stocks 2 5 % 20% to 30%

I nt e r na t io nal Stocks 2 2 % 17% to 27%

A l t e r native Investme nt s 2 5 % 20% to 30%

Real Estate Equity 1 8 % 13% to 23%

D o me s t ic Fixed Inc o me 1 0 % 5% to 25%

C a s h 0 % 0% to 10%

1 0 0 %

S t ra t e g i c
A l l o c a t i o n

A l l o c a t i o n
R a n g eAsset Class



e n d owment will be maintained net of annual payouts to support endowed activ i t i e s . The real re t u rn (net of management fees) 

has substantially exceeded the 6.25% target in all recent peri o d s :

E N D O W M E N T  P E R F O R M A N C E  C O M P A R E D  T O  B E N C H M A R K S To evaluate the performance of the investment man-

a g e rs selected by Stanford , benchmarks that are appro p riate measures for each individual asset class are chosen. For example, t h e

benchmark for the Domestic Stocks asset class is the Russell 3000 I n d e x . The composite benchmark re t u rn is a blending of the

benchmark re t u rns for each asset class weighted by the strategic allocations above. Actual performance net of management fees is

c o m p a red to the composite benchmark for periods ending August 31, 2000:

S t a n f o rd ’s long-term performance advantage demonstrates the Unive rs i t y ’s effectiveness in implementing the multi-asset class

a p p roach through superior manager selection.

The cumu l a t ive re t u rn chart below compares the growth of $100 in Stanford ’s endowment with that of the composite

benchmark over the past 10 ye a rs :

The performance advantage during this 10- year period re l a t ive to benchmark re t u rns has added in excess of $1 billion to the va l u e

of the endow m e n t .
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No m i nal Endo w me nt Return 3 9 . 8 % 24.6% 23.4% 18.2%  

GDP Defla t o r ( 1 ) 1 . 9 % 1 . 6 % 1.7% 2.2%       

Real Endowment Return 37.9% 23.0% 21.7% 1 6 . 0 %

Ten 
Ye a rs

F i ve 
Ye a rs

T h re e
Ye a rs

One 
Ye a r

( 1 ) T he Gross Dome s t ic Price (GDP) de fla t o r, a me a s u re of infla t ion, is through the quarter end i ng June 30, 2000.

O ne Ye a r T h ree Ye a r s Five Ye a r s Ten Ye a r s
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E n d owment vs. Benchmark E ndo w me nt Total Return                Composite Benc h ma r k

S t a n fo rd Merged Endowment Pool vs. Stanfo rd Po l i cy Benchmark E ndo w me nt                 Composite Benc h ma r k
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TE N Y EARS E NDING  AU GUST  3 1, 20 00
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I N D I V I D UA L  A S S E T  C L A S S  P E R F O R M A N C E The solid performance of all asset classes during the year ending 

August 31, 2 000 was ove rs h a d owed only by the continued dramatic re t u rn of A l t e rn a t ive Inve s t m e n t s . The graphs below show

i n d ividual class re t u rns re l a t ive to their benchmarks:

The accelerating rate of technology innovation and the institutionalization of the ve n t u re capital industry provided unpre c e d e n t e d

o p p o rtunities and re c o rd amounts of capital inve s t e d . P u blic markets we re characterized by strong pro a c t ive momentum in 1999

and early 2000, but reached an unsustained peak in Marc h . Te c h n o l ogy and other growth stock indices have fallen dramatically

since then. Within A l t e rn a t ive Inve s t m e n t s , the fiscal year re t u rn on Stanford ’s portfolio of ve n t u re funds was 248%, including 

realized gains of $965 million on distri buted securi t i e s .

S t a n f o rd ’s domestic stock portfolio is deliberately ove r - weighted in value stocks to offset the growth stock-oriented 

c h a r a c t e ristics of the public and private equity holdings within ve n t u re capital part n e rships held in A l t e rn a t ive Inve s t m e n t s .

This value orientation resulted in a year of underp e r f o rmance re l a t ive to its benchmark.

O ver a 10- year peri o d , each asset class exceeded its benchmark, except Domestic Stocks, again due to the ove r - we i g h t i n g

of value stocks. The total endowment re t u rn of 18.2% well outperformed the benchmark’s 15.3% re t u rn :

I am privileged to have joined smc at the end of a great fiscal ye a r. A strong foundation has been built by outgoing ceo, L a u ri e

H o a g l a n d , our portfolio management team, and the smc B o a rd of Dire c t o rs . Our goal is to innovate in ways designed to enhance

overall endowment re t u rn and provide consistent and growing support of the Unive rs i t y ’s progr a m s .

Michael G. M c C a f f e ry
C E O, S TA N FO R D  MA N AGE M E N T  C OM PA N Y

Individual Asset Class Pe r fo r m a n c e E ndo w me nt                    Composite 

D o me s t ic
S t o c k s
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Decade in Review
Y E A R S  E N D E D  A U G U S T  3 1

2 0 0 0 1 9 9 5 1 9 9 0

2 0 0 0 1 9 9 5 1 9 9 0

F I NA N C I A L :

P R I N C I PA L  SO UR C ES  O F  OPE R AT ING  R E V EN U ES :               

S t ude nt tuition, room and board     $       369,013 $         293,715  $         206,978 

S p o ns o red re s e a rch support      674,408   537,902  461,874 

Pa t ie nt care * 3 6 1 , 8 9 1 - -

E x p e ndable gifts in support of opera t io ns   113,187 82,634   74,070 

E ndo w me nt inc o me in support of opera t io ns     315,002 154,981 76,225 

P R I N C I PAL  PU R P OSE S  O F  E X P EN DI TU RE S :               

I ns t r uc t ion and de p a r t me ntal re s e a rch    595,991 391,459 300,906 

O rganized re s e a rch (direct costs)     597,559 402,588  358,295 

Health care services *     397,490  -   - 

L i b ra r ies     93,194  57,893  51,261 

S t ude nt fina nc ial aid      89,117   63,934  52,591 

Adm i n i s t ra t ion, de v e l o p me nt and ge ne ral    176,083 136,212   93,331 

F IN A NC IA L  POS IT IO N  HIG H L IG H TS :               

I n v e s t me nts at fair value      10,797,136  4,338,480 2,382,120 

P l a nt fa c i l i t ie s, net of accumulated de p re c ia t ion   2,215,027 1,058,354   755,799 

Equity investme nt in related health care ent i t ies *      20,063  280,057   213,001 

Notes and bonds payable    1,379,919 6 6 1 , 1 7 2 455,175 

Total net assets    12,124,780  5,035,037  3,352,866 

S T U D E N T S :

E N R O L L M E N T :  **               

Unde rg ra duate    6,548  6,577 6,555 

G ra duate      7,700   7,467  6,886 

D E GRE E S  CON FER RE D :               

B a c helor’s de g rees     1,737  1,623 1,690 

Ad v a nced de g rees      2,904 2,830  2,469 

A N N UA L  U NDE R G R AD UAT E  T U I T IO N  RATE   $        23,058 $          18,669  $          13,569 

FAC U LT Y:

Members of the Ac a de m ic Council   1 , 3 6 8 1,290   1,357 

*B e g i n n i ng April 1, 2000, certain health care activities are 
reported on the cons o l idated basis. Prior to this da t e, they 
w e re reported on the equity basis. 

** E n ro l l me nt for Autumn Quarter imme d iately fo l l o w i ng 
fiscal year end.                

I N  T H O U S A N D S  O F  D O L L A R S
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U n i ve rs i t y H o s p i t a l s C o n s o l i d a t e d C o n s o l i d a t e d

ASSETS      

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1)       $       431,420   $     102,246   $      533,666   $      488,932  

Ac c o u nts receivable (Note 3)       324,537   219,128   543,665   208,155  

Receivables (payables) from SHC, net       40,064   (40,064)  -   -  

I n v e nt o r ie s, pre p a id ex p e ns e s, and other assets       55,584   26,877   82,461   50,535  

P l e dges receivable (Note 6)       481,497   -   481,497   177,101  

S t ude nt loans receivable       74,693   -   74,693   73,851  

O t her loans receivable (primarily faculty mo r t g a ges) (Note 4)       173,147   -   173,147   141,332  

I n v e s t me nts at fair value (Note 5)       10,547,341   249,795   10,797,136   7,807,177  

I n v e s t me nt in UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care (Note 2)       -   20,063   20,063   451,613  

P l a nt fa c i l i t ie s, net of accumulated de p re c ia t ion (Note 7)       1,892,999   322,028   2,215,027   1,718,430  

C o l l e c t io ns of works of art (Note 7)       -   -   -                                -  

Total assets       $  14,021,282   $     900,073   $  14,921,355   $  11,117,126  

LIABILITIES AND NET A S S E T S

L I A B I L I T I E S :

Ac c o u nts payable and accrued ex p e nses       $       491,713   $     259,090   $      750,803   $      424,540
L ia b i l i t ies under security agre e me nts (Note 10)       358,441   -   358,441   343,015  

I nc o me bene fic iary share of living trust investme nts (Note 11)       258,100   -   258,100   237,196  

Notes and bonds payable (Notes 8 and 9)       1,145,248   234,671   1,379,919   1,126,293  
U.S. Governme nt re f u ndable loan funds       49,312   -   49,312   48,418  

Total liabilities       2,302,814   493,761   2,796,575   2,179,462  

NE T  A SSE T S  (NOTE  1 ) :

Un re s t r icted:      
D e s ig nated for opera t io ns      1,107,707   217,043   1,324,750   9 1 8 , 6 6 6

I n v e s t me nt in plant fa c i l i t ies      1,070,131   87,357   1,157,488   1,023,620  
E ndo w me nt gains and funds func t io n i ng as endo w me nt      6,511,772   -   6,511,772   4 , 3 2 5 , 9 3 6

I n v e s t me nt in UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care (Note 2) -   20,063   20,063   4 5 1 , 6 1 3

Un re s t r icted      8,689,610   324,463   9,014,073   6,719,835  

Te m p o rarily re s t r icted       478,159   25,665   503,824   289,012       
Pe r ma ne ntly re s t r icted       2,550,699   56,184   2,606,883  1,928,817       

Total net assets      11,718,468  406,312  12,124,780 8,937,664  

Total liabilities and net assets       $  14,021,282   $     900,073   $  14,921,355   $  11,117,126
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AT  A U G U S T  3 1 ,  2 0 0 0  A N D  1 9 9 9 I N  T H O U S A N D S  O F  D O L L A R S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



S T A N F O R D  U N I V E R S I T Y   |   2 0 0 0  A N N U A L  R E P O R T26

Consolidated Statement of Activities
Y E A R S  E N D E D  A U G US T  3 1 ,  2 0 0 0  A N D  1 9 9 9 I N  T H O U S A N D S  O F  D O L L A R S

2000                                                      1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y H o s p i t a l s C o n s o l i d a t e d C o n s o l i d a t e d

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS AC T I V I T Y

R E V E N U E S :      
S t ude nt inc o me :

Unde rg ra duate pro g ra ms      $      154,153 $             -   $     154,153   $      147,429

G ra duate pro g ra ms      149,013   -   149,013   1 4 1 , 9 0 4
Room and board      65,847   -   65,847   6 1 , 2 5 1

S t ude nt fina nc ial aid      (89,117)  -   (89,117)  ( 8 2 , 4 0 6 )

Total student income       279,896   -   279,896  2 6 8 , 1 7 8

S p o ns o red re s e a rch support (primarily fede ral):             

D i rect costs — University      379,070   -  3 7 9 , 0 7 0 3 5 7 , 4 8 2
D i rect costs — Stanfo rd Linear Ac c e l e rator Center     179,892   -   179,892 1 7 0 , 6 6 0

I nd i rect costs     115,446 -  1 1 5 , 4 4 6 1 0 5 , 4 7 6

Total sponsored re s e a rch support       674,408 -   674,408 6 3 3 , 6 1 8

Health care services:             

Pa t ie nt care      -  361,891  3 6 1 , 8 9 1 -

P hy s ic ia ns’ services and support from SHC, net   58,509  (58,509) -  -
P hy s ic ia ns’ services and support from UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care, ne t 98,193   -   98,193  1 5 5 , 1 2 0

Total health care services       156,702  303,382  460,084 1 5 5 , 1 2 0

Expendable gifts in support of operations     113,187 -  1 1 3 , 1 8 7 9 7 , 4 1 2

I n v e s t me nt inc o me:             
E ndo w me nt inc o me distributed for opera t io ns     215,727 -  215,727 1 4 3 , 8 3 5

E ndo w me nt gains distributed for opera t io ns      99,275  -   99,275  1 1 7 , 7 7 0

O t her investme nt inc o me      175,433  24,769  200,202  1 4 1 , 2 1 2

Total investment income       490,435  24,769  5 1 5 , 2 0 4 4 0 2 , 8 1 7

Special pro g ram fees and other income      1 9 1 , 1 9 0 1 5 , 2 3 7 206,427  1 5 8 , 4 6 7

Net assets released from restrictions     51,437  6,054  57,491   3 2 , 9 3 1

Total revenues       1 , 9 5 7 , 2 5 5 349,442  2,306,697   1 , 7 4 8 , 5 4 3

E XPE N SE S :              

S a l a r ies and bene fits      8 7 4 , 0 4 0 193,210  1,067,250  8 0 8 , 6 6 1

D e p re c ia t ion     1 7 1 , 2 9 5 2 2 , 9 8 4 194,279 1 1 2 , 0 9 3
S t a n fo rd Linear Ac c e l e rator Center   179,892  - 179,892 1 7 0 , 6 6 0

I ns t i t u t io nal support     3 1 7 , 3 3 9 151,874   469,213 2 9 3 , 5 8 0

O t her opera t i ng ex p e nses 187,806 29,422   217,228   2 1 4 , 5 4 1

Total expenses     1,730,372 397,490  2,127,862  1 , 5 9 9 , 5 3 5

E xcess (deficit) of revenues over expenses  $       226,883   $     (48,048) $      178,835  $      149,008
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Consolidated Statement of Activities ( cont i nued )

Y E A R S  E N D E D  A U G US T  3 1 ,  2 0 0 0  A N D  1 9 9 9 I N  T H O U S A N D S  O F  D O L L A R S

2000                                                      1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y H o s p i t a l s C o n s o l i d a t e d C o n s o l i d a t e d

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS ACTIVITY (continued)

E xcess (deficit) of revenues over expenses   $       226,883   $     (48,048) $      178,835   $       149,008

OTH ER  CH A NG ES  I N  UN RE ST R ICT ED  NE T  A S S ETS :  

E x p e ndable gifts invested in the endo w me nt 17,742 - 17,742   4 , 0 8 7

Reinvested endo w me nt gains 1,966,599  -  1,966,599 1 , 1 2 8 , 6 0 4

C h a nge in equity of investme nt in UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care  - (51,994) (51,994) ( 2 4 , 8 1 8 )

S t a n fo rd Alumni As s o c ia t ion cont r i b u t io n -  - - 2 3 , 5 3 5

Capital and other gifts released from re s t r ic t io ns  88,307 6 2 4 88,931 1 1 8 , 6 8 1

R e c l a s s i fic a t ion of SHC net assets (Note 2)  - (52,838) ( 5 2 , 8 3 8 ) -

O t her investme nt inc o me invested in the endo w me nt 155,744  - 1 5 5 , 7 4 4 5 4 , 7 4 2

O t her investme nt inc o me   - 5 6 6 566 -

O t her (556) ( 8 , 7 9 1 ) ( 9 , 3 4 7 ) ( 1 2 , 6 5 8 )

Net change in unrestricted net assets   2,454,719   (160,481)  2,294,238 1 , 4 4 1 , 1 8 1

T E M P O R A R I LY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS ACTIVITY   

Gifts and pledges   3 2 6 , 9 4 7 5 , 7 0 4 332,651 8 6 , 0 4 7

Te m p o rarily re s t r icted return from endo w me nt investme nts  13,830   - 1 3 , 8 3 0 3 , 1 6 5

L i v i ng trust investme nt inc o me and actua r ial adjustme nt   13,757 - 13,757   2 9 , 1 3 2

O t her investme nt inc o me   8,444  2 , 6 5 2 11,096 5 , 5 8 0

Net assets released from re s t r ic t io ns   ( 5 1 , 4 3 7 ) (6,054) (57,491)  ( 3 2 , 9 3 1 )

Capital and other gifts released from re s t r ic t io ns  ( 8 8 , 3 0 7 ) (624) ( 8 8 , 9 3 1 ) ( 1 1 8 , 6 8 1 )

R e c l a s s i fic a t ion of SHC net assets (Note 2) -  1 6 , 1 8 6 16,186  -

O t her  (34,087)  7,801 (26,286) (2,241)   

Net change in temporarily restricted net assets   189,147 2 5 , 6 6 5 214,812  ( 2 9 , 9 2 9 )

P E R M A N E N T LY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS ACTIVITY 

Gifts and pledges  390,616  16,220  406,836  9 9 , 6 1 1

Pe r ma ne ntly re s t r icted return from endo w me nt investme nt s 1 8 5 , 4 8 5 -  1 8 5 , 4 8 5 1 0 1 , 5 6 9

L i v i ng trust investme nt inc o me and actua r ial adjustme nt 1 0 , 8 4 5 - 1 0 , 8 4 5 3 1 , 4 8 2

R e c l a s s i fic a t ion of SHC net assets (Note 2) - 3 6 , 6 5 2 3 6 , 6 5 2 -

O t her investme nt inc o me 3 , 0 6 9 1 , 2 7 5 4 , 3 4 4 2 , 5 9 9

O t he r 3 1 , 8 6 7 2 , 0 3 7 3 3 , 9 0 4 5 , 7 5 5

Net change in permanently restricted net assets 6 2 1 , 8 8 2 5 6 , 1 8 4 6 7 8 , 0 6 6 2 4 1 , 0 1 6

Net change in total net assets 3 , 2 6 5 , 7 4 8 (78,632) 3 , 1 8 7 , 1 1 6 1 , 6 5 2 , 2 6 8

Total net assets, beginning of year 8 , 4 5 2 , 7 2 0 484,944 8 , 9 3 7 , 6 6 4 7 , 2 8 5 , 3 9 6

Total net assets, end of ye a r $  11,718,468 $    406,312 $  12,124,780 $   8,937,664

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2000                                                      1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y H o s p i t a l s C o n s o l i d a t e d C o n s o l i d a t e d

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING AC T I V I T I E S :

Tu i t ion, fees, sales and services         $      650,403  $    341,911  $      992,314 $      545,193

I n v e s t me nt inc o me       257,494  2 4 , 7 6 9 282,263     2 1 9 , 3 6 6

G i f t s, gra nt s, and cont racts    893,612  -  893,612     7 9 2 , 0 3 7

Cash paid to suppliers and employees       ( 1 , 3 9 4 , 1 2 8 ) (341,923) (1,736,051)  ( 1 , 4 1 2 , 8 7 5 )

I nt e rest paid     (50,556) (9,205) (59,761)     ( 5 0 , 1 6 4 )

Net cash provided by operating activities    356,825   15,552   372,377       9 3 , 5 5 7

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING AC T I V I T I E S :

L a nd, building, and equipme nt purchases     (362,780) ( 1 5 , 9 0 1 ) (378,681)  ( 3 4 4 , 6 7 1 )

S t ude nt, fa c u l t y, and other loans:             

New loans ma de     ( 6 3 , 1 8 4 ) -   (63,184)   ( 6 2 , 5 1 5 )

P r i ncipal collected    30,527  -  30,527      3 3 , 7 7 8

P u rchases of investme nts ( 4 , 9 4 0 , 9 3 3 ) - ( 4 , 9 4 0 , 9 3 3 ) ( 3 , 5 0 8 , 7 3 0 )

Sales and ma t u r i t ies of investme nts     4,575,367  2 4 , 6 0 0 4,599,967       3 , 1 6 0 , 5 5 4

Ad v a nces under security agre e me nts      ( 3 5 , 2 2 2 ) -   (35,222)  6 3 , 7 2 1

Cash distributio ns from UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care   -   60,127 60,127     -

Net cash (used for) provided by investing activities      (796,225) 68,826   (727,399)  ( 6 5 7 , 8 6 3 )

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING AC T I V I T I E S :

Gifts for endo w me nt, capital pro j e c t s, and other re s t r icted purposes      356,849 1 7 , 0 2 5 373,874      1 6 7 , 7 9 2

I nc o me reinvested in endo w me nt, capital pro j e c t s, and stude nt loans      7 , 7 8 7 -  7,787  ( 3 8 3 )

P roceeds from borro w i ng    95,596 -   95,596   2 9 8 , 3 9 3

R e p a y me nt of debt     (76,641) (860)  (77,501)  ( 1 3 8 , 4 8 6 )

Net cash provided by financing activities      383,591 16,165  399,756     3 2 7 , 3 1 6

( D e c rease) increase in cash and cash equivalents      (55,809) 100,543 44,734 ( 2 3 6 , 9 9 0 )

Cash and cash equivalent s, beginning of year     487,229  1,703 4 8 8 , 9 3 2 7 2 5 , 9 2 2

Cash and cash equiva l e n t s, end of year     $       431,420   $    102,246  $      533,666 $      488,932

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Y E A R S  E N D E D  A U G U S T  3 1 ,  2 0 0 0  A N D  1 9 9 9 I N  T H O U S A N D S  O F  D O L L A R S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1 . S I G N I F I C A N T  A C C O U N T I N G  P O L I C I E S

BAS IS  O F  PR ESEN TAT I O N The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Stanford Unive rsity (the “ U n ive rs i t y ” ) ,

S t a n f o rd Hospital and Clinics ( “ sh c ” ) , which includes Lucile Salter Pa c k a rd Childre n ’s Hospital at Stanford ( “ l sp c h ” ) , S t a n f o rd

Alumni Association ( “ sa a ” ) , and other majority owned entities. All significant inter-entity transactions and balances have been 

eliminated upon consolidation.

U n i versity The Unive rsity is a priva t e, n o t - f o r - p ro fit educational institution, founded in 1885 by Senator and Mrs . Leland Stanford

in memory of their son, Leland Stanford , Ju n i o r. It is organized into seven schools with approximately 1, 600 faculty and more 

than 14 , 000 graduate and undergraduate students. The Unive rsity category presented in the financial statements comprises all the

accounts of the Unive rs i t y, including sa a , the Hoover Institution and other institutes and re s e a rch centers , and Stanford Linear

Accelerator Center ( “ slac ” ).

The Unive rsity manages and operates slac for the Department of Energy ( “ doe ” ) under a management and operating 

c o n t r a c t ;t h e re f o re, the reve nues and expenditures of slac a re included in the statement of activ i t i e s . As slac is a federally funded

re s e a rch and development center, the assets and liabilities of slac a re owned by the doe a n d ,a c c o rd i n g l y, a re not included in the

statement of financial position.

E f f e c t ive September 1, 199 8 , the Unive rsity became the sole member of sa a. The Unive rsity re c o rded the net assets of 

sa a at September 1, 199 8 , as a contri bution for the year ended A u g u s t 31, 1999 .

H o s p i t a l s The Hospitals category presented in the financial statements includes sh c and the Unive rs i t y ’s investment in

uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care, a nonpro fit corporation controlled jointly by the Unive rsity and the Regents of the Unive rsity 

of California ( “ uc ” ) , which operated the clinical facilities of Stanford Health Services ( “ sh s ” ) ,l sp c h , and the Unive rsity of

C a l i f o rn i a , San Francisco (“uc sf”) from November 1, 1997 t h rough March 31, 2 000 .

The Unive rs i t y ’s investment in uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care is re p o rted in these financial statements using the equity method 

of accounting. As described in Note 2, e f f e c t ive March 31, 2 000 , the operating activities of uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care we re 

t e rm i n a t e d . On A p ril 1, 2 000 , uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care transferred the control of its clinical facilities to sh c and uc. The health

c a re activities of sh c, including its reve nu e, e x p e n s e s , assets and liabilities, a re consolidated in these financial statements. A c c o rd i n g l y,

for fiscal year 2 000 , s even months of health care activities are presented under the equity method and five months are presented 

on a consolidated basis. Such amounts are not comparable with full-year re s u l t s . The organization, financial inform a t i o n , and 

a greements among the Unive rsity and the aforementioned health care entities are discussed in Note 2.

BAS I S  OF  AC C O U N T I N G The financial statements are pre p a red in accordance with generally accepted accounting pri n c i p l e s .

These principles re q u i re management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the re p o rted amounts of assets and liabilities,

the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the re p o rted amounts of reve nues and

expenses during the re p o rting peri o d . Actual results could differ from the estimates and assumptions made.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements



2000                              1 9 9 9

C o n s o l i d a t e d C o n s o l i d a t e d
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For financial re p o rting purp o s e s , net assets and reve nu e s ,e x p e n s e s ,g a i n s , and losses are classified into one of three 

c a t e g o ri e s — u n re s t ri c t e d ,t e m p o r a rily re s t ri c t e d , or permanently re s t ri c t e d . These categori e s , as described below, a re the method 

by which the Financial Accounting Standards Board has chosen to standardize the financial statements of all private not-for-pro fit 

i n s t i t u t i o n s .

U n r e s t ricted Net Assets U n re s t ricted net assets are expendable re s o u rces used to support either the Unive rs i t y ’s core activ i t i e s

of teaching and re s e a rch or the Hospitals’ patient care, t e a c h i n g , and re s e a rch missions. These net assets may be designated by the

U n ive rsity or the Hospitals for specific purposes under internal operating and administrative arrangements or be subject to con-

tractual agreements with external part i e s . D o n o r - re s t ricted contri bu t i o n s , which relate to the Unive rs i t y ’s or the Hospitals’ c o re

a c t iv i t i e s , that are re c e ived and expended, or deemed expended due to the nature of their re s t ri c t i o n , in accordance with the pro-

visions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 117, “Financial Statements of Not-f o r-P ro fit Organizations,” ( “sfas

N o. 117” ) ,a re classified as unre s t ri c t e d . D o n o r - re s t ricted re s o u rces intended for capital projects are released from their temporary

re s t rictions and re c l a s s i fied as unre s t ricted support when spent. All expenses are re c o rded as a reduction of unre s t ricted net assets.

U n re s t ricted net assets consist of the following balances at A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, in thousands of dollars :

D E S I G NATED FOR OPERAT I O N S :

U N I V E R S I T Y :          

P ro g ra ms     $      406,471 $      373,931

O t her gifts and inc o me    5 8 5 , 5 9 2 4 5 4 , 6 6 9

S t ude nt loans and capital projects    115,644  9 0 , 0 6 6

1,107,707  9 1 8 , 6 6 6

H O S P I TA LS :         

SHC pro g ra ms    217,043 -

1,324,750   9 1 8 , 6 6 6

INVESTMENT IN PLANT FAC I L I T I E S :

University’s investme nt in plant fa c i l i t ies     1,070,131  1 , 0 2 3 , 6 2 0

SHC’s investme nt in plant fa c i l i t ies      8 7 , 3 5 7 -

1,157,488 1 , 0 2 3 , 6 2 0

E N D OWMENT GAINS AND FUNDS FUNCTIONING AS ENDOW M E N T:

F u nds func t io n i ng as endo w me nt      1,315,375 1 , 1 1 3 , 3 7 8

G a i ns on pure endo w me nt      2,985,100  1 , 7 4 6 , 2 5 4

G a i ns on funds func t io n i ng as endo w me nt     2,211,297 1 , 4 6 6 , 3 0 4

6,511,772   4 , 3 2 5 , 9 3 6

INVESTMENT IN UCSF STAN FORD HEALTH CA R E 20,063 4 5 1 , 6 1 3

U n restricted net assets $   9,014,073  $   6,719,835



Te m p o ra ri ly Restricted Net A s s e t s Te m p o r a rily re s t ricted net assets are subject to donor-imposed re s t rictions that expire upon

the passage of time or upon specific actions being undert a ken by the Unive rsity or the Hospitals at which time they are re l e a s e d

and re c l a s s i fied to unre s t ricted support .

Te m p o r a rily re s t ricted net assets consist of the following balances at A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, in thousands of dollars :

P e rm a n e n t ly Restr icted Net Assets Pe rmanently re s t ricted net assets are subject to donor-imposed re s t rictions re q u i ring that

the principal be invested in perp e t u i t y.

Pe rmanently re s t ricted net assets consist of the following balances at A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, in thousands of dollars :

The Unive rs i t y ’s and the Hospitals’ i n t e rnal financial management practices differ from the re p o rting re q u i rements set forth in 

sfas N o. 117, p a rticularly with respect to the re c ognition of the release of the donor-imposed re s t rictions on gifts and re l a t e d

i nvestment income and gains. In order to comply with the internal and external re s t rictions placed on the use of the re s o u rc e s ,

the Unive rs i t y ’s accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting. Under these pri n c i p l e s , re s o u rc e s

a re managed through va rious funds in accordance with their specified activities or objective s .
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2000                              1 9 9 9

C o n s o l i d a t e d C o n s o l i d a t e d

Support for capital projects      $     198,794  $       86,753

Term endo w me nts       66,259   3 5 , 6 1 6

F u nds subject to living trust agre e me nts      61,643  6 4 , 9 2 8

O t her gifts and inc o me for ins t r uc t ion, re s e a rch, and University support 151,463 1 0 1 , 7 1 5

478,159   2 8 9 , 0 1 2

SHC ind ige nt care, plant, and other funds       25,665  -

Te m p o rarily restricted net assets $      503,824 $      289,012

2000                              1 9 9 9

C o n s o l i d a t e d C o n s o l i d a t e d

E ndo w me nt funds  $   2,322,268  $   1,721,798

F u nds subject to living trust agre e me nts      174,787   1 5 6 , 5 5 6

S t ude nt loans   53,644  5 0 , 4 6 3

2,550,699   1 , 9 2 8 , 8 1 7

SHC funds limited as to use    56,184  -

Permanently restricted net assets     $   2,606,883 $   1,928,817
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Management considers all reve nues and expenses to be related to operations except re i nvested endowment gains,

changes in equity of uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care, capital gi f t s ,e x p e n d a ble gifts invested in the endow m e n t , and certain other 

non-operating changes.

C ASH AND  CAS H EQU I VA L E N T S Cash and cash equivalents include u. s. Tre a s u ry bills, b a n ke rs ’a c c e p t a n c e s ,c o m m e rc i a l

p a p e r, c e rt i ficates of deposit, m o n ey market funds, and other short - t e rm inve s t m e n t s ,c a rried at cost, which approximates marke t

va l u e. The Unive rsity and the Hospitals consider all investments with remaining maturities of 90 d ays or less at the time of 

p u rchase to be cash equivalents except cash and cash-equivalent amounts held in connection with endow m e n t s , as well as cert a i n

cash re s t ricted in its use by the Hospitals, which are classified as inve s t m e n t s .

S TUDE NT LOA NS  R ECE IVA B L E Student loans re c e iva ble are carried at cost, less an allowance for doubtful accounts.

D e t e rmination of the fair value of student loans re c e iva bl e, which include donor-re s t ricted and federally sponsored student loans

with mandated interest rates and re p ayment terms subject to significant re s t rictions as to their transfer and disposition, could not

be made without incurring excessive costs.

I N V E S T M E N T S I nvestments are generally re c o rded at fair value based upon quoted market pri c e s , when ava i l a bl e, or estimates

of fair va l u e. Donated assets are re c o rded at fair value at the date of donation. Those investments for which fair value is not re a d i-

ly determ i n a ble are carried at cost, fair value at date of donation, or at a nominal va l u e. D eveloped real estate is generally va l u e d

based on discounted cash flows of existing leases. N o n - d eveloped land is re p o rted at cost. S e c u rities transactions are re p o rted on

a trade-date basis.

PLA NT FAC I L I T I E S Plant facilities (including land) are stated at cost or fair value at date of donation. I n t e rest for constru c t i o n

financing is capitalized as a cost of constru c t i o n . A rt objects and collections are not capitalized, as the Unive rsity uses the pro c e e d s

f rom any sales of such items to acquire other art or collection pieces. D e p reciation is computed using the straight-line method

over the estimated useful lives of the plant assets.

As described in Note 7, b e ginning in fiscal year 2 000, the Unive rsity adopted a revised set of useful lives for its equipment

and buildings to re flect current information and to conform with those used for federal cost re i m bu rsement accounting purp o s e s .

D e p reciation charges in fiscal year 2 000 a re higher as a result of the adoption of the new useful live s , which are generally short e r

than those previously employe d .



The useful lives used in calculating depreciation are as follow s :

The method of computing depreciation on academic buildings was also changed in fiscal year 2 000 . Academic bu i l d i n g s

placed in service before September 1, 1999 a re depreciated based upon the estimated useful life of the bu i l d i n g . Academic bu i l d-

ings placed in service after August 31, 1999 a re depreciated based on individual component live s .

P ROVIS ION  F O R EMPL OYE E  BE NEF ITS, C O M P E N S ATED  A B S E N C E S, AN D PRO F E S S I O NAL L I AB IL IT IES T h e

U n ive rsity self-insures for unemployment and disability benefit s . sh c s e l f - i n s u res for unemployment benefit s ,p rofessional liability

ri s k s , and medical malpractice losses. A n nual provisions for estimated claims are charged to operating expenses. The prov i s i o n

includes an accrual for compensated absences.

STU DE NT F INAN CIAL  A I D C e rtain students re c e ive financial assistance in the form of scholarship and fellowship gr a n t s

which cover a portion of tuition, l iv i n g , and other costs. Student financial aid of $ 8 9 , 117, 000 and $ 8 2 , 4 0 6 , 000 for the ye a rs ended

A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, re s p e c t ive l y, is re p o rted as a reduction in student income.

INDI REC T CO ST REC OV E RY The Unive rsity re c o rds re i m bu rsements of indirect costs (facilities and administrative costs)

f rom gr a n t s ,c o n t r a c t s , and slac as operating reve nu e s .

H E A LTH  C ARE  S ERV I C E S A majority of patient care reve nue is derived from contractual agreements with Medicare,

M e d i - C a l , and certain other contracted rate payo rs . Payments under these agreements and programs are based on specific amounts

per case, costs of re n d e ring service to program benefic i a ri e s , or contracted pri c e s .

U NSP ONS OR ED  CO MMUNI TY  B ENE F IT  EXP EN SE sh c’s commitment to community service is evidenced by serv i c e s

p rovided to persons who cannot afford to pay and benefits provided to the broader commu n i t y. B e n e fits for those who cannot

a f f o rd to pay include services provided to persons with inadequate re s o u rces and/or who are uninsured or underi n s u re d . T h e

amount of charity care serv i c e s ,q u a n t i fied at customary charges, was $ 2 , 172 , 000 for the five months ended August 31, 2 000 . T h i s

amount of services is not re c o rded as reve nue since sh c does not pursue collection of unsponsored community benefit s .
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2000                                        1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y H o s p i t a l s U n i ve rs i t y

B u i l d i ngs       20–40 years  10–40 years  40 years

L a nd and building impro v e me nts       10–40 years  5–40 years  15 years

E q u i p me nt and books   3–10 years  3–20 years  6 years 
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TA X STATUS   The Unive rs i t y, sh c, l sp c h , and sa a a re exempt from federal income tax to the extent provided by Section

5 01( c )( 3 ) of the Internal Reve nue Code.

S E PA R AT E  SHC F INA NC IAL  STAT E M E N T S sh c p re p a res separate stand-alone financial statements in conformity with 

generally accepted accounting pri n c i p l e s . For purposes of presentation of sh c’s financial position, statement of activ i t i e s , and 

statement of cash flows in these consolidated financial statements, c o n f o rming re c l a s s i fications have been made to sh c’s reve nu e

and expenses and inter-entity re c e iva bles and paya bles consistent with categories in the consolidated financial statements.

R E C L A S S I F I CAT I O N S Fiscal year 1999 amounts presented for comparative purposes have been re c l a s s i fied to conform with

the fiscal year 2 000 p re s e n t a t i o n .

2 . R E L A T E D  H E A L T H  C A R E  E N T I T I E S

O R G A N I Z ATI ON A ND BAC K G RO UND The Unive rsity is the sole member of sh c, which is the sole member of l sp c h.

P rior to Ja nu a ry 2 000, sh c was known as sh s. E f f e c t ive November 1, 1997, sh s t r a n s f e rred substantially all its assets and liabilities

and uc t r a n s f e rred certain assets and liabilities of uc sf Medical Center to uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care, a California nonpro fit publ i c

b e n e fit corp o r a t i o n . uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care was organized by the Unive rsity and uc to operate the clinical facilities of sh s,

l sp c h , and uc sf in support of the schools of medicine of the Unive rsity and uc sf.

In October 1999, the Unive rsity and uc a greed to terminate the operating activities of uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care 

e f f e c t ive Marc h 31, 2 000 . On A p ril 1, 2 000 , uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care transferred control of the clinical facilities of the

U n ive rsity and uc sf to sh c and uc, re s p e c t ive l y. Included in the transfer to sh c was Stanford Unive rsity Hospital, l sp c h ,

and the pri m a ry care, specialty and subspecialty clinics and professional practices associated with the Unive rs i t y ’s School of

Medicine fa c u l t y. For the five months ended August 31, 2 000 , sh c owned and operated these clinical facilities in support 

of the Unive rs i t y ’s School of Medicine.

Net assets transferred to sh c and uc we re transferred at their historical cost basis of $ 674 , 991, 000 . uc sf S t a n f o rd Health

C a re ’s remaining net assets of $ 4 0 , 2 00 , 000 we re retained by uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care to satisfy known liabilities, to pay costs of

dissolution (currently anticipated to occur prior to August 31, 2 001) and as a provision for unexpected expenses. The Unive rsity 

is re s p o n s i ble for one half of these expenses, offset by investment income. The Unive rs i t y ’s share of uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care ’s

remaining net assets at August 31, 2 000 was $ 2 0 , 0 6 3, 000 . Of the $ 37 9 , 556 , 000 of uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care ’s net assets transferre d

to sh c, $ 16 , 18 6 , 000 we re temporarily re s t ricted and $ 36 , 65 2 , 000 we re permanently re s t ri c t e d .
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UCS F STAN FO RD  HE ALT H CA RE SUM MARIZ ED FI NAN CI A L  IN FO R MAT I O N S u m m a rized financial information 

at and for the year ended August 31, 2 000 includes health care services operations for the seven months ended March 31, 2 000

and winding-down activities for the five months ended August 31, 2 000. T h e re f o re, the summarized financial information is not

c o m p a r a ble with the year ended August 31, 1999 , which re flects 12 months of health care services operations.

The financial information summarized below has been derived from audited financial information provided by uc sf S t a n f o rd

Health Care for the 12 months ended August 31, 1999 and for the seven months ended March 31, 2 000, and from unaudited

financial information for the five months ended August 31, 2 000, in thousands of dollars :

2000                              1 9 9 9

2000                              1 9 9 9

Total revenues      $      914,767   $   1,704,703

D e ficit re s u l t i ng from opera t io ns       $ (127,233)  $  (78,518)  

D i s t r i b u t ion of net assets to SHC             (379,556)         -   

D i s t r i b u t ion of net assets to UC             (295,435)           -   

O t her changes in net assets      (405) 23,921   

D e c rease in net assets       $    (802,629)  $      (54,597)  

Total assets      $     116,822   $   1,664,134   

Total lia b i l i t ies       76,696 821,379   

Total net assets     $       40,126   $      842,755   



U NIV ERS IT Y ’S  I N VE STME NT IN HOSP I TA L S The following table summarizes the changes in the Unive rs i t y ’s inve s t m e n t

in uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care and the net assets of sh c d u ring the ye a rs ended A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, in thousands of dollars :

The Unive rs i t y ’s net investment in the Hospitals at A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999 is comprised of the follow i n g , in thousands of dollars :
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UCSF Stanfo rd                          SHC
Health Care

I n v e s t me nt at August 31, 1998      $     476,431  $       31,047

F O R  T H E  YE A R  E ND E D  A U G US T  31 ,  1 99 9 :           

D e ficit re s u l t i ng from opera t io ns            (39,259)           (37) 

O t her changes in net assets             14,441         2,321  

I n v e s t me nt at August 31, 1999              451,613           33,331  

F OR  TH E S EV E N  M O N T HS  E NDE D  M A RCH  3 1 ,  2 0 00 :           

D e ficit re s u l t i ng from opera t io ns             (63,878)   

O t her changes in net assets          11,921    

I n v e s t me nt at Ma rch 31, 2000             399,656    

AP R IL  1 ,  2 0 00 :           

Tra nsfer of net assets of UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care          (379,556)         379,556  

I n v e s t me nt at April 1, 2000               20,100    

F OR  TH E  F IV E  MO N T HS  EN D ED  AU G U S T  3 1 ,  20 00 :           

D e ficit re s u l t i ng from wind i ng - down activities                   (37)   

FO R  TH E  YE A R  E N DE D  AU G US T  31 ,  2 00 0 :           

D e ficit re s u l t i ng from opera t io ns               (48,048) 

O t her changes in net assets       21,410  

I n vestment at August 31, 2000       $       20,063   $     386,249  

2000                              1 9 9 9

SHC        $    386,249 $      33,331

UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care              20,063   4 5 1 , 6 1 3

Hospitals        $    406,312 $    484,944       
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R E L AT E D - PA RT Y T R A N S AC T I O N S D u ring the seven months ended March 31, 2 000 and for the year ended 

August 31, 1999 , the Unive rsity had operating agreements with uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care for the professional services of fa c u l t y

m e m b e rs of the Stanford Unive rsity School of Medicine, for certain other Unive rsity employe e s , and for other facility charges 

and serv i c e s . A c c o rd i n g l y, the Unive rsity has re c o rded net reve nues from uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care of approximately $ 9 8 , 193, 000

for the seven months ended March 31, 2 000 and $ 155, 12 0 , 000 for the year ended August 31, 1999 . The Unive rsity and sh c h ave

re c e iva bl e s , net of paya bl e s ,f rom uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care of approximately $ 2 8 , 531, 000 and $ 81, 2 95, 000 at August 31, 2 000 and 

1999 , re s p e c t ive l y. C e rtain investments of uc sf S t a n f o rd Health Care with an approximate fair market value of $ 15 9 , 914 , 000 a t

August 31, 1999 , we re managed by the Unive rs i t y.

On A p ril 1, 2 000 , the Unive rsity entered into new operating agreements with sh c for the professional services of fa c u l t y

m e m b e rs of the Stanford Unive rsity School of Medicine, for certain other Unive rsity employe e s , and for other facility charges 

and serv i c e s .

3 . A C C O U N T S  R E C E I V A B L E

Accounts re c e iva ble at A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, in thousands of dollars ,a re as follow s :

2000                              1 9 9 9

C o n s o l i d a t e d C o n s o l i d a t e d

U N I V E R S I T Y :      

U.S. Governme nt     $       40,030  $       40,283

Accrued int e rest on investme nts      19,855   1 7 , 1 4 9

S t ude nt      3,148  3 , 3 1 7

Due from bro kers      221,232  3 0 , 4 0 6

Due from UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care   -   8 5 , 7 9 5

O t her      4 2 , 3 9 0 3 3 , 3 6 9

326,655  2 1 0 , 3 1 9

Less allowances for losses     (2,118) ( 2 , 1 6 4 )

324,537  2 0 8 , 1 5 5

HO S P I TA LS :          

SHC’s re c e i v a b l e s, net of allowances (inc l udes $168,936 of net patie nt receivables       

a nd $33,167 from UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care)     219,128  -

Accounts re c e i va b l e $     543,665 $     208,155



4 .  F A C U L T Y  A N D  S T A F F  L O A N S  R E C E I V A B L E

In a program to attract and retain excellent faculty and senior staff, the Unive rsity provides home mortgage financing assistance.

Notes amounting to $ 17 0 , 8 97, 000 and $ 134 , 607, 000 at A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, re s p e c t ive l y, f rom Unive rsity faculty and staff are

collateralized by deeds of trust on pro p e rties concentrated in the re gion surrounding the Unive rs i t y. The carrying value of such

loans approximates fair va l u e.

5 . I N V E S T M E N T S

I nvestments held by the Unive rsity and the Hospitals at A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999 a re re p o rted principally at fair va l u e, on a 

consolidated basis, as follow s , in thousands of dollars :

The Unive rsity re p o rts endowment cash and short - t e rm investments as inve s t m e n t s . Assets held by other trustees are re p o rted 

net of income benefic i a ry share in the amounts of $ 4 0 , 72 9 , 000 and $ 37, 25 9 , 000 at August 31, 2 000 and 1999, re s p e c t ive l y.
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2000                                                      1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y H o s p i t a l s C o n s o l i d a t e d C o n s o l i d a t e d

Cash and short-term investme nts       $     697,131   $     70,515  $     767,646  $     423,995

B o nds and mu t ual funds       1,015,421         8,991 1,024,412  8 2 1 , 5 5 3

C o r p o rate stocks and mu t ual funds     4,823,996          1 0 , 4 7 8 4 , 8 3 4 , 4 7 4 3 , 9 3 8 , 4 8 2

Assets held by other trustees      1 1 4 , 4 5 5 -   1 1 4 , 4 5 5 1 1 8 , 2 9 5

Real estate and impro v e me nts:             

S t a n fo rd Sho p p i ng Center      228,362  - 228,362  2 1 1 , 9 7 2

O t her     740,281  -   740,281   6 2 9 , 1 4 7

Limited partnership investme nts    3,022,130   -   3,022,130   1 , 7 7 5 , 8 3 3

O t her      65,376  -   6 5 , 3 7 6 4 7 , 8 1 4

10,707,152 89,984   10,797,136 7 , 9 6 7 , 0 9 1

I n v e s t me nts ma na ged for UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care     -  - -   ( 1 5 9 , 9 1 4 )

SHC’s investme nt in University’s Me rged Endo w me nt Pool     (159,811)  1 5 9 , 8 1 1 -   -

I n vestments at fair va l u e $ 10,547,341  $   249,795   $ 10,797,136  $  7,807,177



Total investment re t u rn re flected in the statement of activities for the ye a rs ended A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, in thousands 

of dollars , is as follow s :

As indicated in the following tabl e, as of A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, in thousands of dollars , the Unive rs i t y ’s investments are inve s t e d

in the expendable funds pool ( “ ef p ” ), the merged endowment pools or in specific instruments to comply with donor re q u i re m e n t s :

The ef p is a pool of short - t e rm inve s t m e n t s ,b o n d s , and equities which is intended to provide adequate liquidity and pru d e n t

growth as well as an opportunity for the Unive rsity to earn long-term premiums on a portion of the pool. The Unive rs i t y ’s

e n d owment is invested through several pools with va rying objective s .
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2000                                                      1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y H o s p i t a l s C o n s o l i d a t e d C o n s o l i d a t e d

O t her unre s t r icted return      $   2,122,343  $          566   $   2,122,909   $   1,183,346

Te m p o rarily re s t r icted return      36,031 2,652   38,683 3 7 , 8 7 7

Pe r ma ne ntly re s t r icted return   199,399   1,275   2 0 0 , 6 7 4 1 3 5 , 6 5 0

Total reinvested return     2,357,773   4,493   2,362,266  1 , 3 5 6 , 8 7 3

I n v e s t me nt return used for opera t io ns    490,435 24,769   515,204   4 0 2 , 8 1 7

Total investment return     $   2,848,208    $      29,262    $  2,877,470 $   1,759,690

2000                              1 9 9 9

C o n s o l i d a t e d C o n s o l i d a t e d

U N I V E R S I T Y :             

E x p e ndable Funds Pool      $      919,665  $      754,062

Me rged Endo w me nt Pool     8,575,607   5 , 9 5 2 , 6 8 1

Me rged Pool C     165,928  1 4 2 , 1 6 6

L i v i ng trusts     494,530   4 5 8 , 6 8 0

O t her investme nts    1,371,170   1 , 2 7 7 , 6 6 6

Less funds cross-invested in endo w me nt pools

( i nc l ud i ng SHC’s investme nt of $159,811 in the University’s Me rged Endo w me nt Pool)    (979,559) ( 7 7 8 , 0 7 8 )

10,547,341   7 , 8 0 7 , 1 7 7

HO S P I TA LS :          

SHC’s investme nts      249,795   -

I n vestments at fair va l u e $  10,797,136  $    7,807,177
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The Unive rsity Board of Trustees (“the Board”) has established a policy for the distri bution of the investment re t u rns of the ef p.

The policy re q u i res that an amount based upon a pre-set interest rate and the performance of the ef p be made ava i l a ble to 

s u p p o rt current operations. The difference between the actual re t u rn of this pool and the re q u i red distri bution amount is deposit-

ed or withdrawn from funds functioning as endow m e n t . For the ye a rs ended A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, the results of the ef p,

in thousands of dollars , we re as follow s :

The Merged Endowment Pool holdings are invested with the expectation of maximizing the total re t u rn . B o a rd policy limits 

that portion of the realized gain that may be expended. Merged Po o l C is invested for capital appreciation rather than curre n t

y i e l d . The distri butions of certain endowments whose gift terms allow only yield to be expended are limited to current yield.

The Unive rs i t y ’s policy gove rning the amounts paid annually from the endowment pools to support current operations 

is designed to protect the value of the endowment against the expected impact of inflation and to provide real growth of the

e n d ow m e n t , while also funding a re l a t ively constant portion of the Unive rs i t y ’s current operating expenditure s . The payout 

r a t e, set annually by the Board , is based upon an estimate of total investment re t u rns and the expected impact of inflation on the

e n d owment assets. The sources of the payout are earned income on the endowment assets (intere s t ,d iv i d e n d s , re n t s , and roya l t i e s ) ,

p reviously re i nvested income and a portion of realized capital gains.

The Board approved a target payout rate of 5. 25 % for fiscal ye a rs 2 000 and 1999. To meet the Board - a u t h o rized payout rate,

e n d owment gains and previously re i nvested income we re distri buted for operations, in thousands of dollars , as follow s :

2000                              1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y U n i ve rs i t y

Total investme nt return of the EFP      $      246,514  $      124,516

Less inc o me ma de available to curre nt opera t io ns     ( 9 0 , 7 7 0 ) ( 6 9 , 7 7 4 )

Income invested in the endowment    $      155,744 $        54,742

2000                              1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y U n i ve rs i t y

Me rged Endo w me nt Pool      $       93,411  $     113,358

Me rged Pool C      5,864 4,412  

E n d owment gains distributed for operations $       99,275   $     117,770 
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I n d ividual funds subscribe to or dispose of shares of the endowment pools on the basis of market value per share as of the most

recent valuation date. I n f o rmation on shares and data per share for the merged pools is as follow s :

The investments of the Unive rsity include a va riety of financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk involving contractual 

commitments for future settlements, including future s ,f o r wa rd s ,o p t i o n s , and swap contracts, which are exchange traded or are

e xecuted ove r-t h e-c o u n t e r.

The Unive rsity enters into foreign currency forwa rd contracts pri m a rily for the purpose of minimizing the risk to the

U n ive rsity of adve rse changes in the relationship between curre n c i e s . A forwa rd currency contract is an obligation to purchase 

or sell a currency against another currency at a future date and price as agreed upon by the part i e s . Fo r wa rd contracts are traded

over-the-counter and not on organized commodities or securities exchanges. The Unive rsity intends to cover the commitments

to deliver currency under these contracts by acquiring a sufficient amount of the underlying curre n c y. At August 31, 2 000,

the Unive rsity had forwa rd contracts to sell and buy foreign currency of $ 397, 644 , 000 and $ 557, 138 , 000 , re s p e c t ive l y. At 

August 31, 1999 , the Unive rsity had forwa rd contracts to sell and buy foreign currency of $ 380 , 745, 000 and $ 383, 64 8 , 000 , re s p e c-

t ive l y. In connection with these contracts, net unrealized losses of $ 5, 4 0 8 , 000 and $ 9 2 , 000 h ave been re c o rded by the Unive rs i t y

as of August 31, 2 000 and 1999, re s p e c t ive l y. Fo r wa rds necessarily invo l ve counterp a rty credit exposure. The Unive rsity seeks to

c o n t rol this risk through counterp a rty credit evaluations and approva l s ,c o u n t e rp a rty credit limits, and exposure monitori n g .

2000                              1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y U n i ve rs i t y

MERGED ENDOWMENT POOL:

Total ma r ket value (in $000’s)     $   8,575,607   $   5,952,681

Number of shares outstand i ng (in 000’s)    62,416   5 9 , 9 9 9

Ma r ket value per share      $     137.395  $       99.213

Payout amo u nt per share:        

E ndo w me nt inc o me    $         2.868   $         1.958

E ndo w me nt gains           1.712          2 . 1 5 2

Pa yout amount per share $         4.580   $         4.110

MERGED POOL C:

Total ma r ket value (in $000’s)     $     165,928  $      142,166

Number of shares outstand i ng (in 000’s)     3,441  3 , 5 7 3

Ma r ket value per share      $       48.222  $       39.789

Payout amo u nt per share:        

E ndo w me nt inc o me     $          .239  $          .302

E ndo w me nt gains       1.641      1 . 1 9 8

Pa yout amount per share   $         1.880  $         1.500
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The Unive rsity generally enters into options and futures contracts for the purpose of reducing the risk level of its inve s t-

ments or serving as a temporary surrogate for investment in stocks and bonds. An option is a contract which grants the ri g h t , bu t

not the obl i g a t i o n , to execute a specific purchase or sales transaction at a stated exe rcise pri c e. A futures contract is a standard i z e d

a greement between two parties to buy and sell an asset at a set price on a future date. Upon entering into futures contracts, t h e

U n ive rsity is re q u i red to pledge to the bro ker an amount of cash or securities equal to the minimum initial margin re q u i re m e n t s

of the exchange on which the contracts are traded. At A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, the total margin pledged on options and future s

contracts was $ 18 , 072 , 000 a n d $ 21, 367, 000 , re s p e c t ive l y. In connection with these contracts, net unrealized gains of $ 4 , 5 23, 000

and net unrealized losses of $ 4 33, 000 h ave been re c o rded by the Unive rsity as of A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, re s p e c t ive l y. T h e

notional amounts of futures contracts at August 31, 2 000 (which are not re c o rded in the Unive rs i t y ’s financial statements) we re

a p p roximately $ 1, 171, 332 , 000 ( l o n g / buy) and $ 321, 719 , 000 ( s h o rt / s e l l ) .

The Unive rsity also sells securities “ s h o rt ” in order to enhance investment re t u rns (see Note 10 re g a rding securities sold short ) .

6 .  U N I V E R S I T Y  P L E D G E S  R E C E I V A B L E

Unconditional promises are included in the financial statements as pledges re c e iva ble and are classified as either temporari l y

re s t ricted or permanently re s t ricted reve nue depending upon donor pre f e re n c e. Pledges are re c o rded at the present value of 

the discounted future cash flow s , net of allowa n c e s . At A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, pledges we re expected to be re c e ived in the 

f o l l owing peri o d s , in thousands of dollars :

2000                              1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y U n i ve rs i t y

O ne year or less       $       28,736   $       21,739

Between one year and five years      498,578  1 7 1 , 9 9 8

Mo re than five years       90,126  3 5 , 5 7 0

617,440  2 2 9 , 3 0 7

Less discount / a l l o w a nce      (135,943) ( 5 2 , 2 0 6 )

Pledges re c e i vable $     481,497  $     177,101
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7 .  P L A N T  F A C I L I T I E S

Plant facilities at A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, in thousands of dollars ,a re as follow s :

The Unive rsity re c e ives federal re i m bu rsement for a portion of the costs of its facilities used in organized sponsored re s e a rc h .

Recent revisions of om b C i rcular a - 21, which establishes principles for determining such re i m bu rs a ble costs, re q u i re conformity 

of the lives and methods used for federal cost re i m bu rsement accounting and financial re p o rting purp o s e s . In fiscal year 2 000, t h e

U n ive rsity adopted a revised set of useful lives to re flect current information and to conform to those used for federal re c ove ry

p u rposes to comply with the new federal regulations (Note 1) . The effect of this change in estimate is an increase in the depre c i a-

tion charge for the year ended August 31, 2 000 of $ 4 0 , 18 6 , 000 .

Fully depreciated assets, mainly equipment and books, that are still in use by the Unive rsity amounted to $ 539 , 000 , 000

and $ 39 4 , 000 , 000 at A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, re s p e c t ive l y. D u ring the year ended A u g u s t 31, 2 000 , the Unive rsity re t i re d

$ 2 8 , 9 4 8 , 000 in fixed assets and their related accumulated depre c i a t i o n .

The insurable value of the Unive rs i t y ’s museum and special collection pieces, which are not capitalized, a p p rox i m a t e d

$ 2 00 , 000 , 000 (unaudited) at A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999.

2000                                                      1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y H o s p i t a l s C o n s o l i d a t e d C o n s o l i d a t e d

L a nd and impro v e me nts       $      134,424   $       5,684   $      140,108 $      112,156

B u i l d i ngs       1,739,560   407,654   2,147,214   1 , 5 2 5 , 4 7 0

E q u i p me nt and books     891,691  250,323 1,142,014 8 2 3 , 6 4 3

C o ns t r uc t ion in pro g ress       2 8 6 , 2 7 6 56,224   342,500 2 6 6 , 5 4 5

P l a nt fa c i l i t ie s 3,051,951  719,885 3,771,836 2 , 7 2 7 , 8 1 4

Less accumulated de p re c ia t ion   (1,158,952) (397,857) (1,556,809) ( 1 , 0 0 9 , 3 8 4 )

Plant fa c i l i t i e s, net of accumulated depreciation      $   1,892,999 $    322,028  $   2,215,027   $    1,718,430
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8 . U N I V E R S I T Y  N O T E S  A N D  B O N D S  P A Y A B L E

Notes and bonds paya ble at August 31, 2 000 and 1999, in thousands of dollars ,a re as follow s :

At A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, the fair value of these debt instruments approximated the re c o rded value of the related debt 

o bl i g a t i o n s .

The Unive rsity incurred interest expense of $ 64 , 39 4 , 000 and $ 55, 7 91, 000 for fiscal ye a rs 2 000 and 1999, re s p e c t ive l y,

of which $ 11, 321, 000 and $ 4 , 530 , 000, re s p e c t ive l y, h ave been capitalized as a cost of constru c t i o n .

Scheduled principal payments on notes and bonds, e x c l u s ive of commercial paper, for the fiscal ye a rs 2 001 t h rough 2 005,

in thousands of dollars ,a re approx i m a t e l y :

2000                              1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y U n i ve rs i t y

C a l i fo r n ia Educ a t io nal Facilities Au t hority (CEFA ) :

R e ve nue Bond s, Series B, I, J, K, M, N, O, and P            

due serially to 2031, with int e rest from 4.0% to 8.0%   $     558,235  $     576,634       

R e v e nue Bond s, Series L with variable int e rest rates     83,818  65,425   

D e p a r t me nt of Educ a t ion Bonds of 1959 to 1984 due             

s e r ially to 2024, with int e rest from 3.0% to 3.5%     3,913  4 , 5 8 3

S t a n fo rd University Bonds due 2024, with fixed int e rest of 6.875%     150,000  150,000       

Medium Term Notes ($150,000 authorized)             

due to 2026, with fixed int e rest from 5.85% to 7.65%    100,000   1 0 0 , 0 0 0

C o m me rc ial Pa p e r, with variable int e rest rates     156,116   1 3 4 , 6 0 1

O t he r, with various int e rest rates      93,166  9 5 , 0 5 0

U n i ve rsity notes and bonds payable    $   1,145,248   $   1,126,293

Ye a r P r i n c i p a l

2 0 0 1 $ 53,082   

2002 $   17,172   

2003 $ 8,449   

2004  $ 23,170   

2005 $   15,006  
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The collateral for the annual debt service on certain c efa R eve nue Bonds consists of a pledge of annual tuition reve nue 

of approximately $ 5 25, 000 and investments of approx i m a t e l y $ 2 , 14 8 , 000 (at marke t ) , which we re on deposit with a trustee at

August 31, 2 000. The c efa R eve nue Bonds have certain re s t ri c t ive cove n a n t s , including maintenance of certain financial ratios.

On March 15, 1999, the Unive rsity issued $ 5 0 , 000 , 000 in taxable Medium Te rm Notes with a coupon interest rate of

5. 85 % and priced to yield 5. 8 7 % to the maturity date of March 15, 2 00 9. The net proceeds of these notes will be used for 

general corporate purp o s e s , including the re p ayment of outstanding obligations and capital improvement progr a m s . To date,

the Unive rsity has issued $ 100 , 000 , 000 of debt under the $ 15 0 , 000 , 000 a u t h o rized Medium Te rm Note Progr a m .

On March 15, 1999 , the Unive rsity issued $ 110 , 44 0 , 000 in c efa R eve nue Bonds Series p ( “c efa p”) to finance certain 

costs of faculty and staff housing, the cre a t i o n ,e x p a n s i o n , and improvement of certain campus ro a d way s , and for other capital and

financing purp o s e s . c efa p was issued as follow s : (i) $ 51, 260 , 000 with a coupon interest rate of 5. 25% and priced to yield 4 . 55 %

to the maturity date of December 13, 2 013 ; (ii) $ 5 9 , 180 , 000 with a coupon interest rate of 5. 00 % and priced to yield 5. 03 % to 

the maturity date of December 1, 2 0 23.

The Unive rsity issues va ri a ble rate demand notes to re finance current c efa p rincipal pay m e n t s . In October 199 8 a n d

October 1999, the Unive rsity issued $ 17, 815, 000 and $ 18 , 393, 000 in c efa l - 6 and l - 7 Refunding Reve nue bonds at initial intere s t

rates of 3. 1 % and 3. 5 %, re s p e c t ive l y. In October 2 000, the Unive rsity issued $ 15, 725, 000 in c efa l - 8 Refunding Reve nue bonds 

at an initial interest rate of 4 . 0 % .

The Unive rsity has a commercial paper credit facility which provides for borrowings up to $ 2 00 , 000 , 000 . The outstanding

balance at August 31, 2 000 was $ 156 , 116 , 000. The weighted average days to maturity is 117, and the weighted average effective

i n t e rest rate is 6 . 1 % .

The Unive rsity uses interest rate swaps to manage the interest-rate exposure of its commercial paper progr a m . An 

i n t e rest-rate swap is an agreement between counterp a rties to exchange periodic interest payments based on specific interest rate

d i f f e rentials applied to a specified notional amount. A swap allows one party to effectively change the interest-rate stru c t u re of 

a debt obligation or an investment through the exchange of payments with another part y. S waps enable participants to obtain

financing at the least possible cost and simultaneously hedge unwanted ri s k . The contracts executed by the Unive rsity are 

s t ru c t u red with the purpose of minimizing any mismatch between the commercial paper rate paid and the short - t e rm rate

re c e ive d . S waps necessarily invo l ve counterp a rty credit exposure. The Unive rsity seeks to control this risk through counterp a rt y

c redit evaluations and approva l s ,c o u n t e rp a rty credit limits, and exposure monitori n g . A d d i t i o n a l l y, the terms of swap agre e m e n t s

p rovide that collateral may be posted or appro p riate guarantees obtained between the Unive rsity and the counterp a rty in order 

to minimize credit exposure to or from the counterp a rt y. At A u g u s t 31, 2 000 , the Unive rsity had swap agreements expiri n g

t h rough 2 00 8 to pay fixed interest rates from 5. 7 8 % to 8 . 01% which had notional principal amounts totaling $ 6 2 , 000 , 000. A t

A u g u s t 31, 1999 , the Unive rsity had swap agreements expiring through 2 00 8 to pay fixed interest rates from 5. 7 8 % to 8 . 01 %

which had notional principal amounts totaling $ 6 3, 000 , 000. The fair market value of the interest-rate swaps is not re c o rded in 

the Unive rs i t y ’s financial statements because it is not materi a l .



9 . H O S P I T A L S  N O T E S  A N D  B O N D S  P A Y A B L E

Bonds and cert i ficates at August 31, 2 000, in thousands of dollars ,a re as follow s :

The bonds and cert i ficates are unsecured obligations of sh c and l sp c h (jointly and severally as “the Obligated Gro u p ” ) .

Payments of principal and interest on the bonds and cert i ficates are insured by municipal bond guaranty policies. The Master

Trust Indenture of the Obligated Group includes, among other things, limitations on additional indebtedness, liens on pro p e rt y,

re s t rictions on disposition or transfer of assets, and compliance with certain financial ratios. sh c m ay redeem the bonds and 

c e rt i fic a t e s , in whole or in part ,p rior to the stated maturi t i e s . Redemption of the bonds re q u i res a premium of up to 2 % .

Redemption of the cert i ficates is without pre m i u m .

H o l d e rs of the cert i ficates have the option to tender the cert i ficates as of designated purchase dates. In order to ensure 

the availability of funds to purchase any cert i ficates tendered that the re m a r keting agent is unable to re m a r ke t , sh c has obtained

bank credit agreements that expire beginning in September 2 001, unless extended by mutual agre e m e n t . sh c has the option 

to conve rt the cert i ficates to a fixed rate.

The bonds we re issued at a discount. The discount is being amortized to interest expense over the term of the bonds.

Estimated principal payments on bonds and cert i fic a t e s , for the fiscal ye a rs 2 001 t h rough 2 005, in thousands of dollars ,a re 

s u m m a rized below :

The fair value of these debt instruments is estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar issues and on the

c u rrent rates offered to sh c for debt of the same remaining maturi t i e s . At August 31, 2 000, the fair value of the debt instru m e n t s

a p p roximated the re c o rded va l u e.
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H o s p i t a l s

F i xed Rate Revenue Bonds 1998 Series B, payable in annual          

a mo u nts through 2013, with an avera ge int e rest rate of 5%     $     191,475

1993 Va r iable Rate Certificates of Pa r t ic i p a t ion, payable in          

a n nual amo u nts through 2023, fixed int e rest rate of 6.2%      4 3 , 1 9 6

Hospitals notes and bonds paya b l e $     234,671

Ye a r P r i n c i p a l

2 0 0 1 $    3,440   

2002 $    3,570   

2003 $    3,800   

2004  $    4,045   

2005 $    4,190  
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At August 31, 2 000, the Obligated Group had swap agreements expiring through 2 0 23 to pay a fixed interest rate of 

6 . 2 % , which had notional principal amounts totaling $ 39 , 800 , 000 .

The Unive rsity is not an obligor or guarantor with respect to any obligations of the Obligated Gro u p.

10 . L I A B I L I T I E S  U N D E R  S E C U R I T Y  A G R E E M E N T S

At August 31, 2 000 and 1999, the Unive rsity held $ 190 , 4 32 , 000 and $ 165, 371, 000 , re s p e c t ive l y, of short - t e rm u. s. G ove rn m e n t

o bligations and cash as collateral deposits for certain securities loaned temporarily to bro ke rs . These amounts are included as 

assets and liabilities in the Unive rs i t y ’s financial statements. S e c u rities on loan at August 31, 2 000 and 1999 had estimated marke t

values of $ 18 4 , 4 2 4 , 000 and $ 157, 96 3, 000 , re s p e c t ive l y.

The Unive rsity also sells securities “ s h o rt ” in order to enhance investment re t u rns and manage market exposure. S h o rt

sales are transactions in which the Unive rsity sells a security in anticipation of a decline in the market value of that securi t y. To

complete such a transaction, the Unive rsity must borrow the security to deliver to the bu yer upon the short sale; the Unive rsity 

is then obligated to replace the security borrowed by purchasing it in the open market at some later date. The Unive rsity will

incur a loss if the market price of the security increases between the date of the short sale and the date on which the borrowe d

s e c u rity is re p l a c e d , and will realize a gain if the security declines in value between those dates. At August 31, 2 000 and 1999,

the fair market value of such securities is $ 168 , 00 9 , 000 and $ 10 9 , 818 , 000 , re s p e c t ive l y.

At August 31, 1999 , the Unive rsity sold securities subject to an obligation to re p u rchase them at a future date in the

amount of $ 67, 8 26 , 000 . The borrowings have been accounted for as financing transactions and bear interest at rates betwe e n

3. 8 75% and 4 . 7 6 %, i n c l u s ive, for 1999. At August 31, 2 000 , t h e re we re no securities sold that we re subject to a re p u rchase 

a gre e m e n t .

11 . U N I V E R S I T Y  E N D O W M E N T

The Unive rsity manages a substantial portion of its financial re s o u rces within its endow m e n t . These assets include pure 

e n d ow m e n t ,t e rm endow m e n t s , funds functioning as endow m e n t , and funds subject to living trust agre e m e n t s . Depending 

on the nature of the donor’s stipulation, these re s o u rces are re c o rded as either permanently re s t ri c t e d ,t e m p o r a rily re s t ri c t e d ,

or unre s t ricted net assets.

P u re endowment funds are subject to the re s t rictions of the gift instruments re q u i ring that the principal be invested in 

p e rpetuity and the income and an appro p riate portion of gains only be spent as provided for under the California Uniform

Management of Institutional Funds Act (“cumifa” ) . In the absence of further donor re s t ri c t i o n s , the amount of gains that are to

be expended in a given year is determined through the endowment payout policy discussed in Note 5. The Unive rsity classifie s

the ori ginal endowment gift and any donor-imposed re s t ricted gains as permanently re s t ricted assets. The Financial A c c o u n t i n g

S t a n d a rds Board (“fasb”) has determined that the legal limitations imposed by cumifa on the amount of realized and unre a l i z e d

gains on endowments that may be appro p riated for current expenditure do not constitute re s t rictions for financial re p o rting pur-

p o s e s . A c c o rd i n g l y, the Unive rsity re p o rts the re i nvested realized and unrealized gains as unre s t ricted net assets. N o t w i t h s t a n d i n g

this fasb-mandated re p o rt i n g , the Unive rsity re c ognizes the limitations on expending such gains that are specified in cumifa.
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E x p e n d a ble endowment assets include term endowments and funds functioning as endow m e n t . Te rm endowments 

a re similar to other endowment funds except that upon the passage of a stated period of time or the occurrence of a particular 

eve n t , all or part of the principal may be expended. These re s o u rces are classified as temporarily re s t ricted net assets. Funds 

functioning as endowment are unre s t ricted Unive rsity re s o u rces designated as endowment by the Board and are invested in 

the endowment for long-term appreciation and current income. H oweve r, these assets remain ava i l a ble and may be spent at 

the Board ’s discre t i o n . Funds functioning as endowment are re c o rded as unre s t ricted net assets.

Funds subject to living trust agreements re p resent trusts with living income benefic i a ries where the Unive rsity has a 

residual intere s t . The investments of these funds are re c o rded at their fa i r - m a r ket va l u e. The discounted present value of any

income benefic i a ry interest is re p o rted as a liability on the statement of financial position in accordance with actuarial tables 

e s t a blished by the Internal Reve nue Serv i c e. Gifts subject to such agreements are re c o rded as reve nue net of the income 

b e n e fic i a ry share at the date of gi f t . A c t u a rial gains or losses are included in living trust investment income and actuarial adjust-

m e n t . R e s o u rces that are expendable upon maturity are classified as temporarily re s t ricted net assets; all others are classified 

as permanently re s t ricted net assets.

At A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, the Unive rs i t y ’s endow m e n t , excluding pledges, is included in the following net asset categori e s ,

in thousands of dollars :

2000                              1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y U n i ve rs i t y

Un re s t r icted net assets     $  6,511,772  $  4,325,936

Te m p o rarily re s t r icted net assets      127,902  1 0 0 , 5 4 4

Pe r ma ne ntly re s t r icted net assets      2,246,231  1 , 8 0 0 , 2 1 5

E n d owment net assets $  8,885,905  $  6,226,695
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Changes in the Unive rs i t y ’s endow m e n t , excluding pledges, for the ye a rs ended A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, in thousands of 

d o l l a rs ,a re as follow s :

E n d owment re t u rns re i nvested are classified in the following net asset categories at August 31, 2 000 and 1999, in thousands 

of dollars :

IN VE S TM EN T  RE T UR N S :

E a rned endo w me nt inc o me (inc l ud i ng $3,203 and $676 reinvested in endo w me nt, 

as re q u i red by do no r, in 2000 and 1999, respectively)      $     218,930  $     144,511

C h a nge in net realized and unrealized appre c ia t ion of investme nts du r i ng the year    2,274,184  1 , 3 8 8 , 2 4 8

Total investme nt re t u r ns       2,493,114  1 , 5 3 2 , 7 5 9

Un re s t r icted inc o me and gains distributed for opera t io ns     (315,002)  ( 2 6 1 , 6 0 5 )

E ndo w me nt re t u r ns reinvested       2,178,112  1 , 2 7 1 , 1 5 4

OTH ER  CH A NG ES  I N  EN D O WM EN T:

Gifts (net of $172,684 and $18,136 in pledges in 2000 and 1999, respectively)    242,315  9 2 , 2 3 0

I n v e s t me nt of funds into endo w me nt, net   236,164  1 0 4 , 4 7 1

Ac t ua r ial adjustme nt on living trusts 12,404  2 2 , 1 7 0

O t her changes  (9,785)  ( 8 , 2 1 8 )

Net increase in endowment       2,659,210  1 , 4 8 1 , 8 0 7

E ndo w me nt, beginning of year       6,226,695 4 , 7 4 4 , 8 8 8

E n d owment, end of year       $  8,885,905   $  6,226,695

2000                              1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y U n i ve rs i t y

2000                              1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y U n i ve rs i t y

Un re s t r icted   $  1,966,599  $  1,128,604

Te m p o rarily re s t r icted      25,048  2 3 , 1 1 8

Pe r ma ne ntly re s t r ic t e d 186,465  1 1 9 , 4 3 2

R e i n vested endowment returns        $  2,178,112  $  1,271,154
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12 . U N I V E R S I T Y  G I F T S

The Unive rs i t y ’s Office of Development (“ood”) re p o rts total gifts based on contri butions re c e ived in cash or pro p e rty during 

the fiscal ye a r. Gifts re p o rted for financial statement purposes are re c o rded on the accrual basis. The following summarizes gi f t s

and pledges re c e ive d , for the ye a rs ended A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, per the statement of activities as well as on the cash basis 

(as re p o rted by ood) , in thousands of dollars :

The Office of Development includes in its annual gifts total actuarial gains on living trusts that mature within five ye a rs of the

date of gi f t .

2000                              1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y U n i ve rs i t y

E x p e ndable gifts in support of opera t io ns       $      113,187  $        97,412

E x p e ndable gifts invested in the endo w me nt      17,742  4 , 0 8 7

Te m p o rarily re s t r icted ge ne ral gifts     148,750 5 5 , 8 1 2

B u i l d i ngs and impro v e me nts      178,197 3 0 , 2 3 5

Pe r ma ne ntly re s t r icted endo w me nt gifts      390,605 9 9 , 5 7 3

Pe r ma ne ntly re s t r icted stude nt loans     11 3 8

Total gifts per statement of activities    848,492  2 8 7 , 1 5 7

Ad j u s t me nt to gift total as reported by OOD:         

P l e dges     (532,434)  ( 1 0 2 , 3 8 7 )

No n - go v e r n me nt gra nt s, re c o rded as spons o red re s e a rch support    37,706   3 4 , 3 8 4

Pa y me nts ma de on pledges       228,038  9 7 , 5 9 1

Ac t ua r ial gains on early maturity of living trusts    265  4 , 1 6 4

O t her     (1,593)  ( 1 , 2 5 4 )

Total gifts as reported by OOD   $      580,474  $      319,655
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13 . F U N C T I O N A L  E X P E N S E S

Expenses for each of the ye a rs ended August 31, 2 000 and 1999 we re categorized as follow s , in thousands of dollars :

D e p re c i a t i o n ,i n t e re s t , and plant operations and maintenance expenses are allocated to program and supporting activ i t i e s , except 

for slac c o n s t ru c t i o n . A u x i l i a ry activities include housing and dining serv i c e s ,i n t e rc o l l e giate athletics, sa a , and certain patient 

c a re provided by the School of Medicine.

14 . U N I V E R S I T Y  P E N S I O N  P L A N S  A N D  O T H E R  P O S T R E T I R E M E N T  B E N E F I T S

The Unive rsity provides re t i rement benefit s ,t h rough both contri bu t o ry and noncontri bu t o ry pension plans, for substantially all of

its employe e s . In addition to providing pension benefit s , the Unive rsity provides certain health care benefits for re t i red employe e s .

P EN SIO N PLAN S  The Unive rs i t y ’s policy is to fund pension costs in accordance with the Employee Retirement Income

S e c u rity Act minimum funding re q u i re m e n t s . Total net pension expense for the ye a rs ended A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999 wa s

a p p roximately $ 4 0 , 613, 000 and $ 45, 9 44 , 000, re s p e c t ive l y.

R e t i rement benefits for certain nonexempt employees are provided through a noncontri bu t o ry defined benefit pension

p l a n . The Unive rsity re c ognized income related to the defined benefit pension plan of $ 8 , 805, 000 and $ 581, 000 for the ye a rs 

ended A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, re s p e c t ive l y.

The Unive rsity offers a defined contri bution pension plan to eligi ble faculty and staff. U n ive rsity and participant 

c o n t ri butions are invested in annuities and mutual funds. U n ive rsity contri butions under this plan amounted to approx i m a t e l y

$ 49 , 4 04 , 000 and $ 4 6 , 539 , 000 for the ye a rs ended A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, re s p e c t ive l y.

U N I V E R S I T Y :             

I ns t r uc t ion and de p a r t me ntal re s e a rch     $      595,991  $      541,169

O rganized re s e a rch (direct costs)     597,559  5 3 8 , 1 1 7

L i b ra r ies   93,194  7 5 , 9 0 4

S t ude nt services    48,036   4 5 , 4 9 2

Adm i n i s t ra t ion      104,811  9 4 , 8 5 0

D e v e l o p me nt and ge ne ral   71,272   8 8 , 6 6 1

S L AC cons t r uc t ion    7,332  1 3 , 7 7 5

Au x i l iary activities    212,177  2 0 1 , 5 6 7

1,730,372  1 , 5 9 9 , 5 3 5

H O S P I TA L S :

Health care services     397,490  -

Total expenses       $   2,127,862 $   1,599,535

2000                              1 9 9 9

C o n s o l i d a t e d C o n s o l i d a t e d



PO STRE TIR EME NT BE NEF I T  P LA NS Substantially all of the Unive rs i t y ’s employees may become eligi ble for certain health

c a re benefits if they reach a qualifying re t i rement age while working for the Unive rs i t y. R e t i ree health plans are paid for in part

by employee contri bu t i o n s , which are adjusted annu a l l y. B e n e fits are provided through va rious insurance companies whose

charges are based either on the benefits paid during the year or annual pre m i u m s . Health benefits are provided to re t i rees and

their cove red dependents.

The Unive rsity re c ognizes the cost of postre t i rement benefits other than pensions over the periods that employees re n d e r

s e rv i c e. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard s N o. 10 6, “ E m p l oye rs ’Accounting for Po s t re t i re m e n t

B e n e fits Other Than Pe n s i o n s ,” the Unive rsity re c ognizes the prior service obligation over 2 0 ye a rs .

The change in pension and other postre t i rement plan assets and the related change in benefit obl i g a t i o n , in thousands of dollars 

as of A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, we re as follow s :

E f f e c t ive Ja nu a ry 1, 1999, the Unive rsity capped its health care benefits plan subsidy for post-65 b e n e fits for non-Medicare +

Choice progr a m s . The Unive rs i t y ’s subsidy for post-65 b e n e fits for non-Medicare+ Choice programs will be increased effective

Ja nu a ry 1, 2 001.
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CHANGE IN PLAN A S S E T S

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year      $   253,611 $   219,467  $     25,266  $     21,304

Ac t ual return on plan assets      45,543  50,466  3,956  4 , 6 4 1

Employer cont r i b u t io ns      -  -   3,298  2 , 6 1 7

Plan partic i p a nts’ cont r i b u t io ns    -  -  2,003  1 , 8 8 0

B e ne fits paid      (14,512) (16,322)  ( 6 , 4 2 0 ) ( 5 , 1 7 6 )

Fair value of plan assets at end of year   $   284,642  $   253,611   $     28,103   $     25,266

CHANGE IN BENEFIT OBLIGATION             

B e ne fit oblig a t ion at beginning of year     $   196,226  $   205,634   $     75,965  $     56,530

S e r v ice cost      4,286  4,901   2,777  1 , 8 0 7

I nt e rest cost     13,760  14,046   5,352  3 , 8 2 5

A me ndme nts     -  -   2,274  -

Ac t ua r ial (gain) loss      ( 5 , 2 0 1 ) (12,033)  21,614   1 7 , 5 8 9

B e ne fits paid    (14,512) ( 1 6 , 3 2 2 ) (4,416) ( 3 , 7 8 6 )

B e n e fit obligation at end of year       $   194,559  $   196,226  $   103,566  $     75,965

Pe n s i o n

2000                 1999

Other Po s t re t i re m e n t

2000                  1999
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The accrued benefit cost, in thousands of dollars , was determined as follows at A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999:

The discount rate, expected rate of re t u rn on plan assets and the projected cove red pay roll growth rates used in determining the

a b ove accrued benefit costs we re as follows for the ye a rs ended A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999:

The assumed health care trend rate used to measure the accumulated postre t i rement benefit obligation at August 31, 2 000 was 

10 % for calendar year 2 00 2. The rate was assumed to decrease by 1% for each of the next four calendar ye a rs , with a 6 % a n nu a l

rate for calendar year 2 00 6 , and to remain at that level there a f t e r.

The assumed health care rate used to measure the accumulated postre t i rement benefit obligation at August 31, 1999 was 

6% for calendar year 2 001. The rate was assumed to decrease to 5. 5 % for calendar year 2 00 2 and remain at that level there a f t e r.

Plan assets minus bene fit oblig a t ion       $     90,083   $     57,385  $   (75,463) $   (50,699)

Un recognized tra ns i t ion (asset) liability   (1,806)  ( 2 , 7 0 7 ) 33,391 3 5 , 9 5 9

Un recognized prior service cost     1,493   1,680  2,274  -

Un recognized net actua r ial (gain) loss     (96,451) (71,844) 11,715  ( 8 , 4 6 4 )

Ac c rued benefits cost re c o rded in the 

statement of financial position      $     (6,681)  $   (15,486) $   (28,083) $   (23,204)

Pe n s i o n

2000                 1999

Other Po s t re t i re m e n t

2000                  1999

D i s c o u nt rate      7.50%  7.25% 7.50% 7 . 2 5 %

Expected return on plan assets       8.75% 8.75% 8.75%  8 . 7 5 %

C o v e red payroll growth rate      5.00% 5 . 0 0 % N / A N / A

Pe n s i o n

2000                 1999

Other Po s t re t i re m e n t

2000                  1999
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Net benefit (income) expense related to the plans for the ye a rs ended A u g u s t 31, 2 000 and 1999, in thousands of dollars ,i n c l u d e d

the following components:

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts re p o rted for the health care plans. I n c reasing the

health care cost trend rate by 1% in each future year would increase the accumulated postre t i rement benefit obligation by

$ 13, 6 9 8 , 000 and the aggregate service and interest cost by $ 1, 307, 000. D e c reasing the health care cost trend rate by 1% in each

f u t u re year would decrease the accumulated postre t i rement benefit obligation by $ 9 , 8 9 2 , 000 and the aggregate service and intere s t

cost by $ 1, 107, 000 .

15 . H O S P I T A L S  P E N S I O N  P L A N S  A N D  O T H E R  P O S T R E T I R E M E N T  B E N E F I T S   

shc and lspch p rovide re t i rement benefits through defined benefit and defined contri bution re t i rement plans cove ring 

substantially all employe e s .

DEFIN ED BEN EF I T  P LANS   C e rtain employees of shc a re cove red by one of two noncontri bu t o ry, d e fined benefit pension

p l a n s . B e n e fit obligations of the lspch plan at August 31, 2 000 we re $ 4 , 2 00 , 000, offset by $ 4 , 2 00 , 000 of plan assets. B e n e fits of

c e rtain prior employees of lspch a re cove red by a frozen defined benefit plan. B e n e fits are based on ye a rs of service and the

e m p l oye e ’s compensation. C o n t ri butions to the plans are based on actuarially determined amounts sufficient to meet the benefit s

to be paid to plan part i c i p a n t s .

B e n e fits accumulated through March 31, 2 000 a re included in the benefit obligation re c o rded on the books of ucsf

S t a n f o rd Health Care. Management of shc and the Unive rsity of California are in discussion with the irs in order to fa c i l i t a t e

transfer of those March 31, 2 000 o bligations to shc and the Unive rsity of Californ i a . Pending transfer of these benefit obl i g a t i o n s ,

e l i gi ble employees will be paid benefits for services provided before A p ril 1, 2 000 f rom ucsf S t a n f o rd Health Care and for serv i c e s

p rovided after A p ril 1, 2 000 by shc or lspch. Since shc ultimately expects ucsf S t a n f o rd Health Care to transfer certain of these

o bligations to shc, shc has re c o rded the interest cost on a portion of these obligations in the period ended August 31, 2 000 .

S e r v ice cost       $       4,286  $       4,901  $       2,777   $       1,807

I nt e rest cost      13,760  14,046  5,352  3 , 8 2 5

Expected return on plan assets   (21,628) (18,231) (2,211) ( 1 , 8 1 1 )

A mo r t i z a t ion of tra ns i t ion (asset) liability     (901) (901) 2,568 2 , 5 6 8

A mo r t i z a t ion of prior service cost    187  187  -  -

Recognized net actua r ial (gain)       (4,509) (583) (52)  ( 1 , 1 6 2 )

Net periodic benefit (income) expense      $     (8,805) $        (581) $       8,434   $       5,227

Pe n s i o n

2000                 1999

Other Po s t re t i re m e n t

2000                  1999



DE FINE D CON TRI BU TIO N P LAN  E m p l oyer contri butions to the defined contri bution re t i rement plan are discre t i o n a ry

and are based on a percentage of participant annual compensation. E m p l oyer contri butions to this plan, totaling $ 6 , 7 00 , 000 ,

a re included in the employee benefits expense duri n g 2 000.

P OS TRE TIR EME NT MED ICA L BEN EF IT  PLAN sh c c u rrently provides health insurance coverage for employees upon

re t i rement at age 55 with ye a rs of service as defined by certain cri t e ri a ,o r, for specific employe e s , at age 65 with at least five ye a rs

of serv i c e. The health insurance coverage is the same as that provided for active employe e s . The obligation for these benefits 

has been re c o rded in the accompanying balance sheet.

The net periodic pension cost and postre t i rement medical benefit cost includes the following components, in thousands of 

d o l l a rs for the year ended August 31, 2 000 (with costs generally occuring in the last five months of the fiscal ye a r ):

The accrued benefit cost, in thousands of dollars , was determined as follows at A u g u s t 31, 2 000 :
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CHANGE IN BENEFIT OBLIGAT I O N

B e ne fit oblig a t ion at beginning of year      $             -   $         47,782

S e r v ice cost      681  7 5 1

I nt e rest cost       2,985  1 , 5 2 8

Ac t ua r ial (gain) loss       (4,322) 6 4 9

B e ne fits paid      -   ( 8 9 8 )

B e n e fit obligation at end of year     $        (656) $         49,812

CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS         

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year    $             -  $        -   

Employer cont r i b u t io ns    -   8 9 8

B e ne fits paid      -   (898)        

Fair value of plan assets at end of year      $              -   $                  -

Pe n s i o n
B e n e fits 

Po s t re t i re m e n t
Medical Benefits 

F u nded status      $          656   $        (49,812)

Un recognized prior service cost      -   2 , 7 3 0

Un recognized (gain)     -  ( 4 , 7 2 1 )

Accrued benefits cost re c o rded in the statement of financial position    $          656   $        (51,803)

Pe n s i o n
B e n e fits 

Po s t re t i re m e n t
Medical Benefits 



Net benefit (income) expense related to the plans for the year ended A u g u s t 31, 2 000, in thousands of dollars , included 

the following components:

The discount rate, expected rate of re t u rn on plan assets, and the projected cove red pay roll growth rates used in determining the

a b ove accrued benefit costs we re as follows for the year ended A u g u s t 31, 2 000:

The assumed health care trend rate used to measure the accumulated postre t i rement benefit obligation at August 31, 2 000 wa s

8 . 5 % for the year ending August 31, 2 001. The rate was assumed to decrease by 0 . 75 % for the next five ye a rs and to remain at 

4 . 75% t h e re a f t e r.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts re p o rted for the medical benefit plan.

I n c reasing the health care cost trend rate by 1% in each future year would increase the accumulated postre t i rement benefit 

o bligation by $ 3, 0 67, 000 and the aggregate service and interest cost by $ 12 8 , 000. D e c reasing the health care cost trend rate 

by 1% in each future year would decrease the accumulated postre t i rement benefit obligation by $ 2 , 993, 000 and the aggregate 

s e rvice and interest cost by $ 131, 000.
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S e r v ice cost       $          681  $             751

I nt e rest cost      2,985  1,528  

Expected return on plan assets      (3,670) -  

A mo r t i z a t ion of prior service cost    -   (436) 

Recognized net actua r ial (gain)     (652) (403) 

Net periodic benefit (income) expense      $         (656) $           1,440 

Pe n s i o n
B e n e fits 

Po s t re t i re m e n t
Medical Benefits 

D i s c o u nt rate       7 . 7 5 % 7 . 7 5 %

Expected return on plan assets      8.00%  N / A

Rate of compens a t ion inc rease       3.5–5.5%  N / A

Pe n s i o n
B e n e fits 

Po s t re t i re m e n t
Medical Benefits 
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16 . C A S H  F L O W  R E C O N C I L I A T I O N

The change in consolidated net assets is reconciled to net cash provided by operations for the ye a rs ended A u g u s t 31, 2 000

and 1999 , as follow s , in thousands of dollars :

2000                                                      1 9 9 9

U n i ve rs i t y H o s p i t a l s C o n s o l i d a t e d C o n s o l i d a t e d

C h a nge in net assets      $   3,265,748  $     (78,632) $   3,187,116   $   1,652,268       

( I nc rease) de c rease in accounts receivable  (116,812) (218,698) (335,510)  2,318       

Add back inc rease in bro ker receivables reported in 

i n v e s t i ng activities     190,826  -  190,826 -       

( I nc rease) de c rease in net receivables from SHC    (40,064) 40,064  -  (34,498)      

I nc rease in invent o r ie s, pre p a id ex p e ns e s, and other assets   (5,049) (26,877)  (31,926) (3,682)      

I nc rease in pledges receivable       (304,396) -   ( 3 0 4 , 3 9 6 ) ( 4 , 7 9 6 )

Realized and unrealized gains on investme nts     (2,578,726) ( 2 2 , 9 4 9 ) (2,601,675) ( 1 , 5 7 1 , 3 7 2 )

D e c rease in net equity of UCSF Stanfo rd Health Care     -   51,994  51,994 2 4 , 8 1 8

D e p re c ia t ion and loss on disposal of fixed assets     174,399   22,984  197,383  1 1 7 , 4 4 4

I nc rease in accounts payable and accrued ex p e nses    96,835  229,428  326,263  3 , 4 1 9

I nc rease in inc o me bene fic iary share of living 

trust investme nts  20,904  - 20,904   2 0 , 8 1 1

I nc rease in U.S. Governme nt re f u ndable loan funds  894  -  894  1 , 1 9 9

G i f t s, gra nts and reinvested inc o me of stude nt loan, 

e ndo w me nt, and plant net assets      ( 3 1 0 , 8 1 5 ) (21,924)  (332,739) ( 1 3 1 , 6 9 2 )

O t her     (36,919) 40,162  3,243  1 7 , 3 2 0

Net cash provided by operating activities       $     356,825  $      15,552  $     372,377   $       93,557   
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1 7 . C O M M I T M E N T S  A N D  C O N T I N G E N C I E S     

Management is of the opinion that none of the following commitments and contingencies will have a material adve rse effect on

the Unive rs i t y ’s consolidated financial position.

S PO NSORED  PRO J E C T S The Unive rsity conducts substantial re s e a rch for the federal gove rnment pursuant to contracts 

and grants from federal agencies and depart m e n t s . The Office of Naval Research (“onr”) is the Unive rs i t y ’s cognizant federal

agency for determining indirect cost rates charged to federally sponsored agre e m e n t s . It is supported by the Defense Contract

Audit Agency (“dca a” ) , which has the responsibility for auditing direct and indirect charges under those agre e m e n t s . D i rect 

and indirect costs re c ove red by the Unive rsity in support of sponsored re s e a rch are subject to audit and adjustment.

H O S P I TA L S Cost re p o rts filed under the Medicare program for services based upon cost re i m bu rsement are subject to audit.

The estimated amounts due to or from the program are rev i ewed and adjusted annually based upon the status of such audits 

and subsequent appeals.

The health care industry is subject to nu m e rous laws and regulations of federal, s t a t e, and local gove rn m e n t s . C o m p l i a n c e

with these laws and regulations can be subject to future gove rnment rev i ew and interp re t a t i o n , as well as re g u l a t o ry actions

u n k n own or unasserted at this time. R e c e n t l y, g ove rnment activity has increased with respect to investigations and allegations

c o n c e rning possible violations by health care prov i d e rs of re g u l a t i o n s , which could result in the imposition of significant fines and

p e n a l t i e s , as well as significant re p ayments for patient services previously billed. shc is subject to similar re g u l a t o ry rev i ew s ,a n d

while such rev i ews may result in re p ayments and/or civil remedies that could have a material effect on shc’s financial results of

operations in a given peri o d , management believes that such re p ayments and/or civil remedies would not have a material effect 

on shc’s financial position.

L I T I G AT I O N The Unive rsity and the Hospitals are defendants in a number of other legal actions. While the final outcome

cannot be determined at this time, management is of the opinion that the liability, if any, resulting from these legal actions will 

not have a material adve rse effect on the Unive rs i t y ’s consolidated financial position.

C O N T R AC T UA L COM MITME NTS  At A u g u s t 31, 2 000, the Unive rsity had contractual obligations of approx i m a t e l y

$ 7 8 , 9 8 2 , 000 in connection with major construction pro j e c t s . Remaining expenditures on construction in progress are 

estimated to be $ 551, 2 4 3, 000 , which will be financed with certain unexpended plant funds, gi f t s , and debt.

At August 31, 2 000 , the remaining commitment on contracts for the construction and remodeling of the Hospitals’

facilities was approximately $ 17.8 m i l l i o n .
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T he con s ol i dated financ i al  state m ents  on  the  pre c ed i ng pag e s  have  be en pre pare d in

c o n f o rmity with generally accepted accounting pri n c i p l e s . The management of Stanford Unive rsity is re s p o n s i ble 

for the integrity and objectivity of these financial statements.

In accumulating and controlling its financial data, management maintains a highly developed system of internal 

accounting contro l s . Management believes that a high level of internal control is maintained by the establishment and 

c o m munication of accounting and business policies, by the selection and training of qualified pers o n n e l , and by a program 

of internal audits to give it re a s o n a ble assurance at re a s o n a ble cost that the Unive rs i t y ’s assets are protected and that transactions

and events are re c o rded pro p e r l y.

The accompanying financial statements, w h e re indicated, h ave been audited by the Unive rs i t y ’s independent 

a c c o u n t a n t s ,P ri c ewa t e r h o u s e C o o p e rs l l p. Their re p o rt expresses an informed judgment as to whether management’s 

financial statements considered in their entire t y, p resent fa i r l y, in conformity with generally accepted accounting pri n c i p l e s ,

the Unive rs i t y ’s financial position and changes in net assets and cash flow s . The independent accountants’ opinion is based 

on audit pro c e d u res described in their re p o rt , which include obtaining an understanding of Unive rsity systems, p ro c e d u re s ,

and internal accounting contro l s , and performing tests and other auditing pro c e d u res to provide re a s o n a ble assurance that 

the financial statements neither are materially misleading nor contain material erro rs . While the independent accountants 

m a ke extensive tests of Unive rsity pro c e d u res and contro l s , it is neither practical nor necessary for them to scrutinize a large 

p o rtion of the Unive rs i t y ’s transactions.

The Board of Tru s t e e s ,t h rough its Audit Committee, composed of trustees not employed by the Unive rs i t y, is 

re s p o n s i ble for engaging the independent accountants and meeting with management, i n t e rnal auditors , and the independent

accountants to assure that each is carrying out its responsibilities and to discuss auditing, i n t e rnal contro l , and financial re p o rt-

ing matters . Both the internal auditors and the independent accountants have full and free access to the Audit Committee.

Both meet with the Audit Committee at least annu a l l y, with and without each other, and with and without the presence 

of management re p re s e n t a t ive s .

Management Responsibility for Financial Statements

M . Suzanne Calandra
C O N T RO L L E R

M a riann Bye r wa l t e r
VI C E  PR E SI D EN T F O R B US I N E SS  A F FA IR S 

AN D  C H I E F  FI N AN C I A L  OFF I CE R
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To The Board of Tru s t e e s

S t a n f o rd Unive rs i t y

S t a n f o rd ,C a l i f o rn i a

In our opinion, based on our audits and the re p o rt of other auditors , the accompanying consolidated statements of financial 

position and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flow s , which appear on pages 25 t h rough 58, p resent fa i r l y,

in all material re s p e c t s , the financial position of Stanford Unive rsity at August 31, 2 000 and 1999, and the changes in its net assets

and its cash flows for the ye a rs then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

A m e ri c a . These financial statements are the responsibility of the Unive rs i t y ’s management; our responsibility is to express an 

opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of Stanford Hospital and

C l i n i c s , an entity controlled by the Unive rs i t y, which statements re flect total assets of $ 9 2 4 million as of August 31, 2 000 and 

total unre s t ricted reve nues of $ 399 million for the year then ended.Those statements we re audited by other auditors whose 

re p o rt thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion expressed here i n ,i n s o far as it relates to the amounts included for

S t a n f o rd Hospital and Clinics, is based solely on the re p o rt of the other auditors . We conducted our audits of these statements 

in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of A m e ri c a , which re q u i re that we plan and 

p e r f o rm the audit to obtain re a s o n a ble assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial 

statement pre s e n t a t i o n . We believe that our audits and the re p o rt of other auditors provide a re a s o n a ble basis for our opinion.

San Francisco, C a l i f o rn i a

December 4 ,2 000

Report of Independent Accountants
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